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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FMBHEE

Revenue

Loss for the year
EBIT

EBITDA

Earnings/(loss) per share
— basic (RMB)

Earnings/(loss) per share
— diluted (RMB)

Ordinary shares (shares)

Cash and cash equivalents
(including pledged
bank deposits)

Total assets

Net asset value

Net asset value per share
(RMB)

YA

FEEE

BB AR
BT E R AT
ZAlbE
SRAEF,(BR)
—EAX(ARE)

ZEAHN,(BR)
—BE(ARY)
=i (A

R MREEFEY
(BREBEMRT
F50)

mEE

BEFRE

BREEFE
(AR®)

2020
—B2-2F

RMB’000

ARBTR

191,648
(56,950)
(55,517)
(50,330)

(0.0088)

(0.0088)

2019

RMB'000
ARETIT

25,7197
(52,400)
(59,903)
(50,078)

(0.0067)

(0.0067)

5,635,970,924 5,635970,924

60,469

255,519
199,605

0.04

226,374

322,433
268,416

0.05

2018
—T-NF

RMB'000
ARET T

17,356
(62,414)
(63,802)
(55,222)
(0.0117)
(0.0117)

5,635,970,924

252,459

377,323
317,060

0.06

2017

RMB'000
ARET T

15,693
(5,666)
(134)

14,407

0.0033
0.0033
4,762,033,424

20,551

246,080
150,480

0.03

2016
—E—RF

RMB'000
AREFIT

24,319
(157,898)
(158,294)
(125,269)

(0.0366)
(0.0366)
4,762,033,424

100,545

248,061
137,487

0.03

Smartac International Holdings Limited

2020 Annual Report



Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board") of directors (the “Directors”) of Smartac
International Holdings Limited (the "Company”) together with its subsidiaries
(the “Group”), | hereby present the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (‘FY2020").

During FY2020, the COVID-19 pandemic introduced various ramifications,
including travel restrictions to contain the virus, erosion in consumer
confidence, and a general decline in the business environment worldwide.
However, as with every crisis, there are also opportunities. For one thing, the
pandemic has expedited the online consumption trend. For another, it has
heightened public awareness of the importance of health and wellness, which
in turn has driven the demand for wellness products. We have duly tapped
these two particular developments during FY2020 to the benefit of the Group's
Online to Offline ("020") commerce business.

Boasting a strong e-commerce team, innovative solutions and one-stop
services, we are pleased to have gained the trust from a number of leading
brands, including Stella McCartney, an international luxury lifestyle brand;
Nutronic, a fertility-enhancing supplement brand under Huakang Biomedical
Holdings Company Limited (HKEX stock code: 8622); Grace Cole, a leading
brand from the British renowned for its fragrant bath and body products; and
Mimi Luzon, a top skincare brand from lIsrael. The partnerships have not only
enriched our portfolio of branded products, but more importantly, have also
paved the way for our cooperation with more world-renowned brands and
partners in the future.

Still other positive developments that we have observed amid the pandemic,
in particular, we have been able to negotiate for more reasonable rent and
have recruited seasoned sales staff at competitive remunerations, thus
enabling us to have a good entry point for expanding our retailing presence in
Hong Kong. We have adhered steadfastly to our expansion strategy, opening
four Grace Cole pop-up stores and a Mimi Luzon concept store in the city. With
more diversified 020 commerce platforms and an enriched product range, we
have managed to achieve a six-fold increase in revenue when compared with
the last financial year, despite the adverse conditions.

We have also strategically selected Hong Kong, a free port, as incubator of the
Grace Cole brand, from which expansion to other Southeast Asian markets was
pursued. Concurrently, we have leveraged our e-commerce team in
establishing a Grace Cole flagship store on Tmall, a major e-commerce platform
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). We are encouraged by the progress
made by the Grace Cole business and its proven model, and will replicate and
expand this model to more international brands.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRRS

As for the electronic payment solutions business, it has been affected by the
pandemic and keen short-term market competition. Nonetheless, electronic
payment will continue to gain popularity in the future. It is believed that the
demand for the WeChat Pay services will rebound quickly once border
shutdowns are lifted as the pandemic eases. In addition to providing online
and offline WeChat Pay services to merchants, we will also help them expand
their business presence in the Greater Bay Area by setting up WeChat official
accounts, WeChat Mall(s) and WeChat mini programs through the WeChat
ecosystem. In this way, the merchants can seize opportunities emerging from
the development of the Greater Bay Area.

In summary, we will focus on bolstering the 020 commerce business and
establishing a well-defined business model in response to the tremendous
market potential that health supplements and beauty products have in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Our ultimate goal is to offer integrated online and offline
one-stop solutions for a portfolio of high-quality overseas brands, and acquire
a group of high-value customers, thus be equipped to steer the Group towards
new business frontiers and create greater long-term value for shareholders.

Last but not least, | would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to the Board,
the management team and all staff for their contributions and commitment
amid the pandemic. At the same time, | would like to extend my sincere
gratitude to our customers, business partners and Company’s shareholders for
their continuous support and trust.

Yang Xin Min
Chairman

31 May 2021

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries mainly
provide (i) 020 commerce, and (i) electronic payment solutions and related
services.

(i)

020 commerce segment

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group integrated the
online and offline operations in Hong Kong and the PRC with a view to
consolidate its resources and concentrate its efforts to enhance the
Group's capabilities as an e-commerce service provider. The 020
commerce segment is mainly involved in (i) provision of integrated
online and offline commerce solutions for licensed brands; (i) provision
of innovative e-tailing solutions for the sales and distribution of branded
goods; and (iii) provision of customised supply chain management
solutions for enterprises.

With regard to the e-tailing solutions business, online retailing has
increased in popularity in the wake of social distancing measures
implemented since the COVID-19 outbreak. To capitalise on this trend,
the Group has been proactively exploring opportunities by way of
launching new products, optimizing its existing product offerings and
expanding its clientele by cooperating with leading brands from around
the world, along with major e-commerce platforms such as T-mall and
JD.com and suppliers. Moreover, the Group has built an experienced
e-commerce team in the PRC in early 2020, which is tasked with setting
up retail outlets and conducting promotions on the internet. Worth
noting as well is the Group’s signing of franchise agreements with the
international luxury lifestyle brand Stella McCartney in March 2020 to sell
its fashion apparel and accessories in the PRC. Furthermore, the Group
entered into a distribution agreement with Nutronic Healthcare
Company Limited and Nutronic Biomedical Group Limited (wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company Limited
(HKEX stock code: 8622)) in September 2020 for the exclusive right to
sell, market and distribute fertility-enhancing supplements under the
Nutronic brands.

On the brick-and-mortar front, the softening of the rental market and
decline in staff costs, as well as travel restrictions that have driven local
consumption, have combined to create the perfect opportunity for the
Group to enter the Hong Kong retail market. The Group has thus
established physical presence in the city since October 2020 by
introducing two international beauty brands, namely, Grace Cole and
Mimi Luzon. Four pop-up stores and one concept store have been
opened in popular shopping malls and department stores respectively.
As a leading British brand renowned for its fragrant bath and body
products, Grace Cole was well received not only in Hong Kong, but also
in Southeast Asia. As for Mimi Luzon, a top skincare brand from lIsrael,
although the products received encouraging response, the concept
store was intermittently closed as part of measures to halt the spread of
the COVID-19 virus.

BBt R th

F¥ElRE

AATAREERAR  ETIHBAREEE
R ()020 FH K (i) BF X ARR 5 R KRR
7 o

(i) 020HEHHEP

rpEs e d s pdas oo Bl = op Bl
B AEBBESETHEERFENRLER
BTER  NEAEREREFREALSE
BEEAETHHEREEEEALEN -
O0ABAMEBRE () BIREREIR
AR ERBTRABBRIR ()5
HERSHEREERREHAFNETS
SRR PR (i) B R IR A S 4t
FESEEIRARR TR o

BEFEEMARATREBTE B20198
MRS RBERE BT IEREREE -
SHELTEFRLR - RIERELBE -
AEBEGHAEEE SEHLHE
m: BEREEMMAS - 3B HEER
MEME RERAREXFEE TS
FTahtEBEENBERTPE - It
Iy REBER _E_ZFEPREET
—YRBRYENETELEEK  BET
PLEARTESHRERE - ZIMEBE
ENR AEBR_Z_TF=- AHE
YR 2= 1% A JE T B2 Stella McCartney 28 & 45
FFAS R - R B EHE Zm
KA - N REBR_Z_TF
N A EZNutronic Healthcare Company
Limited & Nutronic Biomedical Group
Limited (Z£ & 4 ¥ 58 22 IR G BR 2 7] (B
RETRM AR : 8622) 22 EMBAR])
RN D E NEREE  EHEED
8 Nutronic mAEE B 7R m °

EREFE HEMHBEH  BIK
IR B Ko R i 5 R 1) 7 B D AN b B B 15
AAESEEERATEMBAETES
e At AEER_ZTE_ZF1+A
FEREBBHARERE 5| AMEBRE
% A i k8 Grace Cole & Mimi Luzon * I A
HMEMEEREERRDBIFRRER
REER -G - WBEEARA R E
IR E mE R A B E R Grace
ColeRBERBUERM B RZED - &
A €5 TA 5 3 8 @ M Mimi Luzon * T
S EE MR B BES)EE 2019
Tk T B R B PR e 1 4 R BRI A BA o

RIEEREERER LA

2020 FEHR



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEmR A

The Group also actively explored new business opportunities, including
from the Hong Kong Government’s Distance Business Programme under
the Anti-epidemic Fund. In addition to providing online and offline
WeChat Pay services for merchants under the electronic payment
solutions segment, the Group also assisted them in expanding their
online and offline presence through setting up of WeChat official
accounts, WeChat Mall(s) and WeChat mini programs, which enhance
the reach and visibility of the Group’s 020 commerce business among
the population.

Segment revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 soared by
860.3% to approximately RMB188,916,000 (2019: approximately
RMB19,672,000), representing approximately 98.6% of the Group’s total
revenue. The upsurge was mainly due to the addition of supply chain
solutions business and e-tailing solutions business when online
consumption began to accelerate amid the COVID-19 outbreak.

(if) Electronic payment solutions segment

The electronic payment solutions segment provides mobile payment
services in Hong Kong through a subsidiary of the Company, Haihai
Limited (“Haihai"), to merchants with payment access, settlement and
marketing functions offered by WeChat Pay. Haihai has been working
with merchants principally engaged in retailing, including medical and
pharmaceutical services, cosmetics and beauty, jewelry, apparel, food
and beverage, etc, so as to offer customers a more convenient and fast
mobile payment option when making both online and offline purchases.

Segment revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 slipped by
43.0% to approximately RMB1,950,000 (2019: approximately
RMB3,424,000). The decline was mainly due to the drop in WeChat Pay
transaction value as a result of significantly fewer tourists and reduced
local spending during the pandemic.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a significant revenue increase of 642.9% from
approximately RMB25,797,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB191,648,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020, which
was mainly attributable to the revenue growth from the 020 commerce
segment by approximately RMB169,244,000 through the provision of supply
chain solutions business and e-tailing solutions business.

Cost of sales and services mainly included cost of merchandises sold under the
020 commerce segment. The amount rose from approximately RMB12,182,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB169,551,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2020 mainly due to the increase in cost of
merchandises sold under the supply chain solutions business and the e-tailing
solutions business.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Selling expenses mainly included employee benefit expenses of sales and
marketing staff, marketing and promotion expenses, e-commerce platform
charges and logistics and warehouse expenses. The balance increased from
approximately RMB8,933,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB27,565,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 mainly
attributable to the increase in headcounts of sales and marketing staff and
marketing and promotion expenses incurred for the 020 commerce business.

Administrative expenses mainly included employee benefit expenses of
corporate and administrative staff, legal and professional fee, depreciation and
office expenses. The balance increased from approximately RMB36,097,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB45,084,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 mainly due to the increase in corporate legal
and professional fee and employee benefit expenses.

Other operating expenses mainly represented allowance for inventories and
impairment of property, plant and equipment. The amount increased from
approximately RMB1,718,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB10,043,000 mainly due to low realisation of inventories
through sales.

PROSPECTS

In light of vaccine rollouts, control of the COVID-19 pandemic is expected in
the future, which in turn will boost consumption sentiment. The management
therefore anticipates the global economy will return to a positive trajectory.
While the virus will eventually be defeated, one trend that will continue is the
shift towards online consumption, an area that the Group has invested
considerable resources into developing over the past year.

In terms of product categories, the management has set its sights on health
supplements and beauty products, which possess great market potential in the
PRC and Hong Kong, especially the former, driven by the public’'s heightened
concerns over their health since the pandemic. Consequently, the Group will
source more brands from Hong Kong and overseas that have been eyeing the
vast PRC online market.

Leveraging the initial success of Grace Cole in Hong Kong and Southeast Asia,
the Group's e-commerce team has within a short time period, i.e. in January
2021, set up a flagship store for Grace Cole on T-mall, which is a testament to
the Group's effective business strategy of incubating international brands in
Hong Kong before making a push into the PRC market. With the maturing
e-commerce business, supported by an experienced team of professionals, the
management is confident that this business will grow steadily, and the Group
will be able to reap its rewards.

As regards the WeChat Pay business, the entry restrictions in Hong Kong and
the PRC will be lifted once the pandemic is under control, which will lead to a
revival of inbound tourists.

Looking ahead, the Group aspires to offer integrated online and offline one-
stop solutions to a portfolio of high-quality overseas brands, and acquire a
group of high-value customers, so as to ultimately create greater value for its
shareholders.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEmR A

DISCUSSION ON QUALIFIED OPINION

(a) Reasons leading to the qualified opinion on the
consolidated financial statements (“Audit Qualification”)

The Company noted that the consolidated financial statements were
subject to the Audit Qualification, on the basis as set out in the section
headed “Basis for qualified opinion” in the Independent Auditor's Report.
The qualified opinion was in connection with recoverability of trade
receivables and net realisable value of inventories as at 31 December
2020.

—  Recoverability of trade receivables

The reasons which gave rise to the qualified opinion on trade
receivables were due to insufficient appropriate audit evidence
provided to the auditor of the Company, RSM Hong Kong, in order
to assess the creditability of the new customers during the year
ended 31 December 2020 with no prior credit history with the
Group and existing customers who were in default of payment.
There were no other satisfactory procedures that RSM Hong Kong
could perform in order to determine whether the recoverability of
trade receivables and the subsequent measurement of the
allowance for expected credit loss were properly stated and
whether any adjustments to the carrying values of trade
receivables were necessary.

—  Netrealisable value of inventories

The reason which gave rise to the qualified opinion on inventories
was insufficient appropriate audit evidence provided to RSM Hong
Kong, in order to assess whether the inventories could be realised
through subsequent sales under latest sales forecast estimated by
the management of the Company (the Management”), taking
into account of the uncertain market situation. There were no
other satisfactory procedures that RSM Hong Kong could perform
in order to determine whether the allowance for net realisable
value of inventories was properly stated and whether any
adjustments to the carrying values of inventories were necessary.

(b) The Management’s and the Audit Committee’s view on
the Audit Qualification

The Management is of the view that the Audit Qualification is fair and
reasonable for the following reasons:

(i) The Management has communicated with the new customers,
who were engaged in the year ended 31 December 2020, during
the period from January 2021 to May 2021 and issued legal
demand letters to a number of customers in respect of the
overdue amounts but remained unsettled as at the date of the
issue of the consolidated financial statements; and

(i) The Management agreed with RSM Hong Kong and took a
prudent view that the realisation of inventories through sales may
not be significant based on historical sales records and latest sales
forecast under current uncertain market conditions.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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The Audit Committee has critically reviewed the major judgmental areas
and has reviewed and agreed with the position and basis of the
Management as stated above. The Audit Committee also considered
that Audit Qualification as fair and reasonable as stated above.

(c) The Company’s proposed plan to address the Audit
Qualification

The Company will take all reasonable measures to address the Audit
Qualification including proactively following up on all the overdue
amounts from the customers and pursuing legal proceedings, where
necessary, refining internal credit risk management policy and
strengthening the ability of sales and marketing teams.

Since the Audit Qualification only had an impact on the corresponding
figures for the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020, this qualified opinion is expected to be uplifted in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December
2021, subject to the auditor’s assessment on the audit evidence to be
obtained during the 2021 audit.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank and cash balances were
approximately RMB60,469,000 (at 31 December 2019: approximately
RMB226,374,000) and bank loans were RMB8,000,000 (at 31 December 2019:
RMB9,000,000). All bank loans were denominated in Renminbi and repayable
within one year. Bank loans of RMB8,000,000 were arranged at fixed interest
rates as at 31 December 2020 (at 31 December 2019: RMB9,000,000). The bank
loans were secured by charge over the right-of-use assets, building, investment
properties and personal guarantee provided by a director of subsidiaries of the
Company. The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:
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As disclosed in 2018 annual report, the Company had completed the placing
of 812,500,000 ordinary shares on 12 December 2018 which generated a net
proceed of approximately RMB226,926,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$257,380,000 after deducting relevant expenses incurred in relation to the
placing), which was mainly used as general working capital for existing
business and for investment of new business in the upstream and downstream
of the Group's principal business if opportunities arise.

BT N\EERAREE ARaRN =T
—N\E+= A+ = B7EMKEE 812,500,000 i &
B EEGBHREFE(EHIRMESES
Z MBS ) 89 AR 226,926,000 7T (FHEZER L
S H257,3800007C) F EERERBER 2 —
BEBES  ENMeHBERBERERRSE
BEBEEEEZ LR TENER -

RIREEERARAA

2020 FEHR

11



12

Management Discussion and Analysis

EREmRO

As at 31 December 2020, the aforesaid net proceed uses which are consistent
with the intended use of proceeds has been applied as follows:

R-Z-BE+-A=+—R8 LRFERE
SFEC RS RRRE Ak — R AR
m

Utilised Unutilised

Intended use amount of amount of

of proceeds proceeds proceeds

RS FIR EEAME RE RS

BERZE NELHE RESE

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT TT BT BT T

(i)  General working capital for existing () IRBEBKZ —REE 257,380 218,522 38,858

business Ex (for both (for both (for both

(i) and (ii)) (i) and (ii)) (i) and (ii))

(RIFSFR{E (R A 1E (R A 1E

() B (i) (i) Bz (ii)) (i) B (i)
(i)  Investment of new businessinthe (i) IREERNEFRIFEHE
upstream and downstream of the TEAERE < b R T

Group's principal business T
Total HBET 257,380 218,522 38,858

The unutilised proceeds, which being placed at the Group’s bank accounts as
at 31 December 2020, are expected to be utilised as intended (i.e. general
working capital for existing business of the Group and for investment of new
business in the upstream and downstream of the Group's principal business if
opportunities arise) for the coming six months period up to June 2021.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 154 employees (at 31 December 2019:
97 employees). Employee benefits expenses (including directors’ emoluments)
for the year ended 31 December 2020 were approximately RMB32,834,000
(2019: approximately RMB23,748,000). Employees were remunerated based on
their performance, experience and prevailing industry practice. The Company
has adopted a share option scheme for eligible persons and discretionary
bonuses are payable to staff based on performance and in accordance with the
Group's overall remuneration policies.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s banking facilities and bank loans totalling
RMB8,000,000 (2019: RMB9,000,000) are secured by:

—  Charge over the Group’s building located in the PRC with carrying
amount of approximately RMB4,542,000 (2019: approximately
RMB4,812,000);

—  Charge over the Group's investment properties with fair value of
approximately RMB57,800,000 (2019: approximately RMB57,000,000);

—  Charge over the Group's right-of-use assets related to leasehold lands in
the PRC with carrying amount of approximately RMB1,950,000 (2019:
approximately RMB2,006,000); and

—  Personal guarantee from a director of the Company’ subsidiaries.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any significant investments, material acquisitions and
disposals during the year ended 31 December 2020.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Major subsidiaries of the Group operate in the PRC and most of the transactions
are denominated in Renminbi. As certain of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars, any
significant exchange rate fluctuations of Hong Kong dollars and United States
dollars against Renminbi may have financial impacts to the Group. Currently,
the Group does not use any derivative financial instruments. Nevertheless, the
Group will review the risk from time to time and take response measures if
necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREmRO

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company acquired 51% equity interests in LCE Group Limited (“LCE
Group") from the vendor (a BVl company) in 2017. This transaction is regarded
as indirect transfer of the PRC subsidiaries of LCE Group by non-tax residents
and fall within the scope as described in the Public Notice [2015] No. 7 (“Public
Notice 7") issued by the State Administration of Taxation (the “SAT").

The capital gain derived from such indirect transfer will be subject to Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT") and the withholding agent should withhold the EIT amount
for settlement with the PRC tax authorities pursuant to the Public Notice [2017]
No. 37 and Public Notice 7 issued by the SAT. The PRC tax authorities would
demand from the withholding agent for the payment of EIT and impose
penalty of 50% to 3 times of the unpaid EIT. The penalty may be relieved if the
share transfer transaction has been voluntarily reported to the PRC tax
authorities.

On 28 December 2017, the Group paid RMB58,358,000 (equivalent to
HK$70,000,000) to the vendor. On 25 June 2018, the Company issued
consideration shares of RMB5,414,000 (equivalent to HK$6,541,000) to the
vendor as part of the consideration. Neither the Group nor the vendor has
reported the share transfer transaction or has settled the EIT to the PRC tax
authorities upon consideration being partially settled according to the sale and
purchase agreement. The Board was of opinion that a provision of
RMBS5,581,000 calculated based on the cash consideration paid to the vendor
as of 31 December 2017 and further provision of RMB566,000 regarding the
shares granted during 2018 was sufficiently made. They considered that the
risk of having a penalty imposed by the PRC tax authorities arising from non-
compliance was reasonably low.

Apart from the above, the Group has no other material contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2019 and 2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Saved as disclosed in note 43 and note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had not executed any agreement in respect of material
investments or capital assets and did not have any other future plans relating
to material investments or capital assets as at the date of this annual report.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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LISTING STATUS

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 8 November
2020, 10 November 2020, 23 February 2021 and 26 February 2021 in relation to,
inter alia, (i) the decision of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange’) to suspend trading in the shares of the Company
(“Shares”) under Rule 6.01(3) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for failure
to maintain a sufficient level of operations as required under Rule 13.24 of the
Listing Rules to warrant the continued listing of the Shares and to proceed with
cancellation of the listing of the Shares under Rule 6.01A(1) of the Listing Rules
if trading remains suspended for a continuous period of 18 months (the “LD’s
Decision”); (i) the Company's request to refer the LD’s Decision to the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Committee”) for review
pursuant to Rule 2B.06(1) of the Listing Rules; (iii) the Listing Committee’s
decision to uphold the LD's Decision (the “LC’s Decision”); and (iv) the
Company's request to refer the LC's Decision to the Listing Review Committee
of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Review Committee”) for review pursuant
to Rule 2B.06(2) of the Listing Rules, respectively.

On 7 May 2021, the Company has withdrawn its request for the LC's Decision
to be referred to the Listing Review Committee for review. Pursuant to Rule
6.01A of the Listing Rules, the Company shall have a period of 18 months from
1 April 2021 (being the date from which trading in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended), expiring on 30 September 2022 to take
appropriate actions to demonstrate its compliance with Rule 13.24 of the
Listing Rules, failing which the Stock Exchange may cancel the listing of the
Shares. Further announcements will be made by the Company in respect of
this matter as and when appropriate and in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFRERERBASMHT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yang Xin Min, aged 71, senior economist, is the founding chairman and
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yang was re-designated as
executive Director with effect from 17 December 2020 and appointed as the
chief executive officer (the “CEQ") and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company with effect from 23 April 2021. Mr. Yang graduated
from the Beijing Economics Correspondence College. Since August 1977, Mr.
Yang has been the general manager of all predecessor entities of the Group.
Mr. Yang has over 40 years’ experience in the research, production
management and international market development of zirconium chemicals.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2001. He is the chairman of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Cheng is currently the independent non-executive director and
chairman of each of audit committee and remuneration committee of Huakang
Biomedical Holdings Company Limited (a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange) (HKEX stock code: 8622). Dr. Cheng was an independent non-executive
director of Niche-Tech Group Limited (HKEX stock code: 8490) from May 2018 to
June 2019.1n 2011, Dr. Cheng graduated with a Doctor of Business Administration
from the City University of Hong Kong with research area in “Independent Non-
Executive Director and Corporate Governance”. He is one of few practicing CPA in
Hong Kong with DBA degree of research area concentrated in INED study. Dr.
Cheng is a Fellow Certified Public Accountant in both Hong Kong and the United
States of America ("USA") and a Certified Tax Advisor of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng received his Bachelor's degree in Accounting (Honours) and
Master's degree of Business Administration from Southern lllinois University, USA, in
1992 and 1994 respectively. Dr. Cheng had worked at the audit division of the
international accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers, and has over 25 years of
experience in financial reporting, business advisory, auditing, accounting, tax
investigation and liquidation. Dr. Cheng is currently the managing director of Gary
Cheng CPA Limited. For public services, Dr. Cheng currently serves Court member
of City University of Hong Kong, Charter President and Honorary Advisor of the
Lions Club of Huaxia Hong Kong and committee member of Social Welfare
Advisory Committee of HKSAR.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Poon Lai Yin, Michael, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in January 2010. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Poon holds a Bachelor's degree in Administrative Studies from York
University in Canada and a Master’s degree in practicing accounting from
Monash University in Australia. He has been a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since July 2009, and a member with
CPA Australia since March 2000 respectively. He passed the qualification
examination of Asset Management Association of China in 2016. He has over
20 years of experience in financial reporting, business advisory, auditing,
taxation, accounting, merger and acquisition.

Mr. Poon is currently an executive director and the chief financial officer of
Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company Limited (HKEX stock code: 8622) since
August 2017. He is also an independent non-executive director of LFG
Investment Holdings Limited (HKEX stock code: 3938) since September 2019,
Niche-Tech Group Limited (HKEX stock code: 8490) since June 2019, Teamway
International Group Holdings Limited (HKEX stock code: 1239) since March
2019 and China Uptown Group Company Limited (HKEX stock code: 2330)
since November 2006.

Mr. Poon was an independent non-executive director of CityNeon Holdings
Limited (a company previously listed on the Mainboard of the Singapore
Exchange Limited) from August 2017 to April 2019.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ERREREEASHN

Mr. Peng Bobo, aged 34, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company on 27
December 2018 and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company with effect from 29 April 2021. Mr. Peng joined the Microelectronics
Research Institute of ZTE Corporation as the senior engineer since December
2015 and has been subsequently promoted and appointed as the expert
engineer since June 2017. Prior to that, Mr. Peng had been appointed as the
engineer and the senior engineer of Advantest Semiconductor Technology
Company Limited for the period from August 2012 to August 2014 and for the
period from August 2014 to August 2015 respectively. Mr. Peng is a veteran
with extensive experience in semiconductor related fields. Mr. Peng obtained a
Bachelor's degree and a Master's degree in microelectronics from East China
Normal University in 2009 and 2012 respectively. Mr. Peng is the joint inventor
for certain invention patents in semiconductor related fields.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yeung Wai Ling, aged 40, is the chief financial officer and company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Yeung graduated from Hong Kong Baptist
University and received a bachelor degree in Business Administration
(Accounting). She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Before joining the Group in 2015, she has worked in international
accounting firm and Singapore listed company. She has extensive experience
in auditing and financial reporting.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance to
safeguard the interest of the shareholders and achieved these by an effective
board, segregation of duties with clear accountability, sound internal controls,
appropriate risk assessment procedures and transparency to all the
shareholders. Save as disclosed below, the Company has complied with the
code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout
FY2020.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance or compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and employees’ code of conduct to ensure that the Group's
operations are conducted in accordance with the standards of the CG Code
and applicable disclosure requirements. Directors and senior management are
provided with appropriate ongoing training, continuing professional
development for regular updates of the legal and regulatory requirements
relevant to their duties.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board is responsible for supervision of the management of the business
and affairs, approval of strategic plans and reviewing of financial performance.

The Board currently comprises four members, including one executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Xin Min (Chairman and CEO)
Mr. Ho Chi Kin (resigned with effect from 23 April 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael

Mr. Peng Bobo

Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung (resigned with effect from 29 April 2021)
Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward (resigned with effect from 29 April 2021)
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The changes to the composition of the Board and Board committees during
FY2020 and up to the date of this report were as follows:

(@)  Mr. Yang Xin Min was appointed as the CEO and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from 23 April 2021.

(b)  Mr. Ho Chi Kin resigned as an executive Director, the CEO and a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company with effect from 23 April 2021.

(©)  Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company with
effect from 29 April 2021.

(d)  Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company with
effect from 29 April 2021.

(e) Mr. Peng Bobo was appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company with effect from 29 April 2021.

During FY2020, the Company had at all times complied with Rules 3.10 and
Rules 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed under the section
headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual
report. An updated list of the Directors and their roles and functions is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation by the
Board

The overall management and control of the Company's business are vested in
its Board, which assumes responsibility for its leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising the Company's affairs. All Directors carry
out their duties in good faith, take decisions objectively and act in the interests
of the Company and shareholders at all times.

Management, under the leadership of the CEO is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group’s businesses and the implementation of the
strategies and policies as determined by the Board. The delegations to the
management are periodically reviewed by the Board to ensure that they are
appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Group as a whole. All Directors
could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company's expense, upon reasonable request made to the
Board and are encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s
executive Directors and management independently.
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Chairman and CEO

During FY2020, Mr. Yang Xin Min was the chairman of the Board and Mr. Ho
Chi Kin was the CEO.

After the resignation of Mr. Ho Chi Kin and the appointment of Mr. Yang Xin
Min as the CEO on 23 April 2021, the roles of the chairman of the Board and the
CEO are performed by the same individual, which is a non-compliance to the
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. However, the Board believes that with the
support of the management, vesting the roles of both chairman of the Board
and the CEO in Mr. Yang Xin Min can facilitate the execution of the Group's
business strategies and boost effectiveness of its operation. In addition, the
Board is also supervised by three independent non-executive Directors. The
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Company. The
Company is in the course of identifying suitable candidate to be appointed as
CEO in order to re-comply with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors

All Directors have formal letters of appointment with the Company, which set
out the key terms of their appointments. Executive Director was appointed for
a term of two years while each independent non-executive Director was
appointed for a term of one year from the date of appointment. The term of
appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at each annual general meeting in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company and the Listing Rules.

According to the articles of association, at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of shareholders after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

The biographies of the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the annual
general meeting are set out in the circular sent with this annual report to
provide information to shareholders to decide on their re-elections.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation, the Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service, and any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time. High emphasis is placed on ensuring
a balanced composition of skills and experience at the Board level for the
benefits of diversity on the Board and enabling the Board to discharge its
duties and responsibilities effectively.

Selection of candidates will be based on the Company’s nomination policy and
will take into account the Board diversity policy. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board and also the
needs of the Board without focusing on a single diversity aspect. The
Nomination Committee shall report its findings and make recommendation to
the Board. Such policy and objectives will be reviewed from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness in determining the optimum composition of the
Board.

Nomination Policy
Objectives

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Policy provides the key selection criteria and
principles of the Nomination Committee in making any such
recommendations.

Selection Criteria

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any proposed
candidate to the Board or reappointment of any existing member(s) of the
Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider a variety of factors including
without limitation the following in assessing the suitability of the proposed
candidate:

Reputation for integrity;

Relevant skills and experience in the information technology industry
and other relevant sectors;

Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the
Company's business;

Smartac International Holdings Limited

EFRESCHE

REBAIRETERRE  ARAR/EFEE
EE AN TTAL Th S R B BUR S B AR AT 548
BRCBEZERER - RAEFQ 2AKE - 1%
THEEEFEZ L BEETRRMER
Fi XERHBEER  FXLR KE-HA

N RAS FHIA R E S g m] sE NS R R ER &
BRZEMEMER REFS ST ENER

s BRAISEERRRESTSEE 2K
KA RE  REFSCUERETRER

yh ==
B °

ARG REBEERERERTEZEREES L LL
BREEERRBRA  UERNBEEEHESSES
T2 BB RERS 2 HFERENET R RS
ABAEESERELZRAEMMIEZ TRE
—ZItEEMENRELRTE - IREEEEH
MEFEREELRRRIEHEBER - BER
KR EBEBTE TR - UERERNETE
%AZFfi” ﬁk °

ERHE

B

REZBEHNEFTENESZIZENEFTHE

ERTEAEFT QR DIERER - RABCRATH

h%*igﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%@m%Wﬁix
EIZERRA

WREE

R RERESFEMEERRALTESE
RE S EHE (AR EE AN - 25
ZERHEESERZGTERBFEEA
A RIEETRATHIER

HE2BE

REMMBITEREMAREE 26
TS

AR RREBRA R - Bk
T EZAGH

2020 Annual Report



Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge;

Compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of an independent non-
executive Director; and

Any other relevant factors as may be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment
of any existing member(s) of the Board shall be made in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association and other applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a meeting, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee may
also nominate candidates for its consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
such individual and make recommendations for the Board's consideration and
approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the proposed candidates to stand for
re-election at a general meeting.

Please refer to the “Procedures for shareholders to propose candidates for
election as Directors”, which is available on the Company’s website, for
procedures for shareholders’ nomination of any proposed candidate for
election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall review and monitor the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board on an annual basis and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general meeting.
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Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy periodically in
line with the Company’s strategy and recommend any proposed changes to
the Board for approval.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by
the Directors.

The Company, having made specific enquiries from all the Directors that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout FY2020.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on directors’ and
officers’ liabilities of the Company in respect of any legal actions taken against
the Directors and officers of the Company arising out of corporate activities.

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
businesses as well as responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations. The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary’) from time to time provides the Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements. The Company Secretary maintains records of trainings
attended by the Directors and the summary of trainings is set out on page 27
of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees to oversee various aspects
of the Group's affairs: the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Terms of reference of all Board committees are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael, Mr. Peng Bobo and is chaired by Dr.
Cheng Faat Ting Gary who has substantial accounting and related financial
management expertise.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for (i) monitoring and reviewing the BiZZE@BE()ERNENAEBTFHRE
effectiveness of the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and 247 - B[S EIE & A ZPEEIE ZF RIS (i) 28
internal control systems; (i) reviewing the Group's financial information; and (i) Bl AE BB E R+ MK (i) S B EAR A A%

overseeing the relationship with the auditor of the Company. The work  EHETHIREER - BEXEZE@R —_ T _Z 8 Fi#T

performed by the Audit Committee during FY2020 were: MTIES:
Reviewed the interim results and annual results; . EMTEAEENFEES
Reviewed the auditing and financial reporting matters, including the - EMERLRUBREEE  BFEIMERZ
management letter from the external auditor in relation to the audit of MM AEER S _EPF2EZRE
the Group for FY2020; BRHEERE MG
Recommended to the Board on the appointment of external auditor; : RETIINEZBMESTSIEHHERER

W

Reviewed and approved the internal audit plans; and . E EHERIEZEE &
Reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of financial reporting system, - RIS mE R - AREE MK E
risk management and internal control systems. ERGRRTREER

Auditor’s Remuneration 2500 ko

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company, RZZ T F & LEZRSE MIFEZRE S
RSM Hong Kong, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for FY2020  {t F 7R R RISMNEZ SN B R @ 5T E /5T 2

is set out below: &2 HTEFIAT -
Fees paid/
Service category PR #3851 payable
e EAER
HK$'000
BT
Audit service Bz

Annual audit for 2020 - ZECERFFEEZ 1,660

Non-audit service T IZ AR
Agreed upon procedures s aEEiEE 330
Review on continuing connected transactions - BERERSHEDS 50
2,040
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael, Mr. Peng Bobo and is
chaired by Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary. All of the members of the Remuneration
Committee consists of independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for (i) reviewing the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management; (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the Directors’ fee structure; and (iii)
reviewing and approving compensation-related issues.

During FY2020, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the adjustment and
proposals of director fee, salary and discretionary bonus of Directors and senior
management.

Remuneration payable to members of senior management of the Company
(excluding Directors) for the year of 2020 is within the following bands:

WHERE
FHEE SRR =B IERTESENX
EVERERL 2RONELEYHEETIBLH
FXF - FNZESMAKBHBIIFNTT
EEMK -

FHEZE AR ()RIJTESREREEA
BZHMEE  (\MEFVSEBRNESTSE
R ¢ R Gi)EH MMERBERREE -

R-Z_ZTUF FHRESECEMNEFH
T FEURBERSREEAB ZBIBEL

BER2H -

TETFEERENARRSRERBAER(TE
REZ)ZHMENFATHE :

Number of individuals

A
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Nil to RMB500,000 T E AR¥ 500,000 7T - 2
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR 500,001 7= A R ¥ 1,000,000 7T - 1
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR 1,000,001 TE AR 1,500,000 7T 1 2

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Yang Xin Min and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael and is chaired by Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for (i) reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board; (ii) assessing the suitability and qualification of
any proposed director candidate; (iii) assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; (iv) making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors; and (v) monitoring
and reviewing the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and
Nomination Policy.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during FY2020 were:
Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,;

Assessed the independence of each independent non-executive
Directors; and

Reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and re-appointment of the Directors.
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2020 BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE AND —E_EHEEEREATHESER
TRAINING RECORDS - HEGE

The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings, Board Committee ZBEERARA T _THFEFLSH  EF
meetings, general meetings of the Company and training for FY2020 was as X E&@&:%  IRE XS K H E BRI K0
follows: e

Attendance/Number of meeting(s) held during the
respective term of services

REBEHABLE BT8ERY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual Extraordinary
Board  Committee  Committee ~ Committee General General Training
Directors Bz Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting (Note)
Ese EBHZET HMZEe REZEE RRAF  RREH b
R g3 Ef Ef g g (Hist)
Executive Director HiTE=S
Mr. Yang Xin Min BIRAE
(Chairman and CFO) (TEREEHTTE) 16/16 11 11 /
Independent Non-executive ~ By FH(TEE
Directors
Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary BETEL 15/16 33 33 22 /1 11 v
Mr.Poon Lai Yin Michael ARERL 15/16 33 33 22 1/1 1/1 /
Mr. Peng Bobo TRRESE 15/16 33 1/1 1/1 v
Resigned Directors BIEE
Mr. Ho ChiKin EEES T 16/16 33 22 1/1 1/1 /
Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung EYREE 15/16 33 33 22 /1 /1 /7
Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward HAMLE 15/16 33 33 22 /1 1/1 /
Number of meetings held RZBZBEEfF
in 2020 PA-§ 11 16 3 3 2 1 1

Note: Trainings included attending seminars and/or reading materials on legal and  ffs3 : B IERXNEB R RESSHENR

regulatory updates, corporate governance, director’s duties and responsibilities. LhESE..EEBRELEANTHNE
R/ EEERER

Apart from meetings in person or by other electronic means, the Board and B EFUEMEF AR LEESHIN =S
Board Committees also circulate written resolutions for approval by the REEZSeEEAATELGEZMAE D
relevant members of the Board and Board Committees in compliance with the — & S4<FRIMSFRME X ERZEAZ R - DA
Company'’s articles of association and Code Provision of the CG Code. EEehEEZ e EEKEHRE -

IR REIE R AR A A
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Ms. Yeung Wai Ling, supports the Board and Board
Committees by ensuring good information flow within the Board and that the
Board's policy and procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and facilitating the induction and continuous
professional development of Directors. During FY2020, the Company Secretary
received not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update her
skills and knowledge. Her biography is set out in this annual report under the
section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management”.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their responsibilities for
the audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 53 to 55.

Basis for qualified opinion
(a) Recoverability of trade receivables

As set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements, the
carrying amount of trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB61,387,000 net of allowances of RMB1,299,000. Allowance for
impairment of trade receivables charged to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was RMB936,000. Up to the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements, trade receivables of
RMB42,586,000 as at 31 December 2020 have not been settled. The
Group has issued legal demand letters to a number of customers in
respect of overdue amounts. In addition, the auditor of the Company,
RSM Hong Kong, have not been provided with customer specific credit
information in respect of new customers during the year ended 31
December 2020 with no prior credit history with the Group or existing
customers who were in default of payment. As a result, RSM Hong Kong
was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
themselves that the allowance for impairment of trade receivables was
properly stated as at 31 December 2020.
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(b) Netrealisable value of inventories

As set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, the
carrying amount of inventories as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB22,349,000 net of allowance of RMB9,873,000. Allowance for
inventories charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 was RMB8,356,000. Up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, inventories of approximately RMB2.5
million have been realised through sales. The sales forecast prepared by
the management for the period to 31 December 2021 shows that
realisation of inventories will continue to be slow due to the uncertain
market conditions. As a result, RSM Hong Kong was unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy themselves that the
allowance for net realisable value of the inventories was properly stated
as at 31 December 2020.

On the above basis, RSM Hong Kong expressed a qualified opinion on the
Company'’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020. For further
details of the auditor’s qualified opinion, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Basis for qualified opinion” in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” and the paragraph headed “Qualified Opinion on the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020" in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the Group's risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis in order to
safeguard the Group's assets, investments and the shareholders’ interest, and
in reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through the Audit Committee.

The Group has engaged an external independent professional firm as the
outsourced internal auditor which provides an independent review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems on
an annual basis and in fulfilling its duties to oversee corporate governance and
material controls in the Group's financial, operational and compliance controls.
The systems and internal controls can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed
to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.
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During FY2020, the Group's internal auditor conducted selective reviews of the
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal controls of the
Group based on the audit plan agreed annually by the Audit Committee over
financial, operational and compliance controls. These results were assessed by
Group's internal auditor and reported to the Audit Committee, which then
reviewed and reported the same to the Board. The Board and Audit Committee
closely monitor the findings conducted and recommendations proposed by
the internal auditor and also the corrective measures taken by relevant
departments.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems established and
maintained by the Group, the work performed by the internal auditor, and
reviews performed by the management, the Audit Committee and the Board
were not aware of any areas of concern that would have a material impact on
the Group's financial position or operating results, and considered that the risk
management and internal control systems to be generally effective and
adequate. The Group would also engage an external internal control consultant
to assist the Company to further strengthen the internal control systems of the
Group.

POLICY AND PROCEDURES OF INSIDE INFORMATION
HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside
information should be announced immediately when it is the subject of a
decision. The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information are as follows:

The Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

The Group strictly prohibits unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information applicable to all employees of the Group;

The Group strictly keeps inside information confidential and restricts to
relevant parties on a need-to-know basis so as to ensure confidentiality
until consistent and timely disclosure of the inside information in an
equal and timely manner by way of financial reporting, company
announcements and its website; and

The Board consults the Company’s legal advisor in assisting to assess

whether the relevant information is considered to be inside information
which needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may also propose a person for election as director and the
procedures for shareholders to propose candidates for election as Directors are
available on the Company’s website.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating to the operations
and management of the Group to be discussed at general meetings. The
proposals shall be sent to the Company Secretary by a written requisition with
his detailed contact information to the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong (details of which are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this annual report). Shareholders who wish
to put forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general meeting
by following the procedures set out in “Procedures for shareholders to
Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting” above.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have a right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries should be
in writing and sent to the Company Secretary at Room 2101, 21st Floor, COFCO
Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong or by email to
investors@smartacgroup.com.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to shareholders to be
our goal. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the Group's actual and expected financial performance;
(i) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(i)  the Group's expected working capital requirements, future expansion
plans and future commitments at the time of declaration of dividend;

(iv)  the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the
relevant financial covenants;

(v)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the
Group's lenders;

(vi)  any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
any applicable laws, rules and regulations relevant to the Group;

(vii)  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(viii) general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and

(ix)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or payment of future dividends
under the Dividend Policy are subject to the Board’s continuing determination
that the Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or payment of dividends
would be in the best interests of the Group and shareholders, and are in
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable Dividend
Policy.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in

its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the
Dividend Policy at any time.
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The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment
by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the
Group to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time, there can be no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends, the form,
frequency and amount will depend upon the abovementioned factors.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company’s general meeting is a valuable forum for the Board
to communicate directly with the shareholders. The Chairmen of the Board
Committees are present to answer shareholders’ questions. The Company aims
to be open and transparent with shareholders and encourages shareholders’
active participation at the Company’s general meetings.

Information would be communicated to the shareholders mainly through the
Company’s corporate communications (such as interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars), annual general meeting and other general
meetings, as well as disclosure on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Interim reports, annual reports and circulars are sent to the
shareholders in a timely manner and are also available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s
websites provides shareholders with the corporate information.

The Company’s annual general meeting allows the Directors to meet and
communicate with shareholders. The Company ensures that shareholders’
views are communicated to the Board. The notice of annual general meeting is
distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the annual general
meeting and the accompanying circular also sets out the procedures for
conducting a poll and other relevant information of the proposed resolutions.
Voting results are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange on the day of the annual general meeting.

Shareholders and investors may also contact the Company by email to
investors@smartacgroup.com or by mail to the Company Secretary at Room
2101, 21st Floor, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong. The website of the Company at www.smartacgroup.com also provides a
medium to make information of the Group available to shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
FY2020 and up to the date of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in providing (i) 020 commerce; (i) electronic
payment solutions; and (iii) others.

The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for FY2020 by operating segment is set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for FY2020 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 56 to 57.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for FY2020
(2019: Nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 4.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during FY2020 are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has investment properties located in
Yinglian International Epibolic Centre, No. 288 Dongping Street, Suzhou
Industrial District, Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The investment
properties are held for commercial use and on medium term lease. Details of
the investment properties are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE ISSUED DURING THE YEAR

Details of the Shares issued during FY2020 are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during FY2020 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 60.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Company's articles
of association, in addition to the retained profits of the Company, the ordinary
share premium account of the Company is also available for distribution to
shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on which
any such distribution is proposed to be paid. Accordingly, the Company's reserves
available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2020 amounted to nil
(2019: RMB44,418,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during FY2020 and as at the date of this report
are shown below. Their biographies are set out on pages 16 to 18.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Xin Min, Chairman and CEO
(re-designated as executive Director on 17 December 2020
and appointed as CEO on 23 April 2021)

Mr. Ho Chi Kin (resigned on 23 April 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael

Mr. Peng Bobo

Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung (resigned on 29 April 2021)
Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward (resigned on 29 April 2021)

Each of the above Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of one to two years. Each service contract will continue
thereafter unless terminated by either party thereto giving to the other at least
one to three months’ notice in writing.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director a
written annual confirmation letter of his independence pursuant to paragraph
12B of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules and considers each of the independent
non-executive Directors is independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which the Director is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFQ); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model
Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions in the shares

Name of Director Capacity
Esns 56

Yang Xin Min Beneficial owner
BHR EnEAA

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the following persons had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares in would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of the Company or any other member of the Group.

Long positions in the shares

Name of Shareholder Capacity
REREE -37)

Yang Xin Min Beneficial owner
B R ExlBA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors had any interest, either direct or indirect, in any business,
which may compete or constitute a competition with the business of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

Details of the connected transactions and related party transactions are
disclosed in this report and in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Save for the above, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company or his
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during FY2020.

At no time during FY2020 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company or its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during FY2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is currently in
force and was in force throughout FY2020. The Company has taken out and
maintained appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions
against its Directors and officers.
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SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED PURSUANT TO THE SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolution by the shareholders of the Company on 24
September 2002, the Share Option Scheme (the “Old Scheme”) was approved
and adopted. The Old Scheme was terminated by a resolution passed by the
shareholders in the Company’s annual general meeting held on 27 May 2011.
No further options can be granted under the Old Scheme but in all other
respects the provisions of the Old Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

On 27 May 2011, the shareholders passed a resolution in the annual general
meeting to approve and adopt a new Share Option Scheme (the “New
Scheme’) and the Board may, at its discretion, grant options (“Options”) to
eligible participants as defined in (ii) below.

(i)

(ii)

Purpose

The purpose of the New Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
Options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Through the
New Scheme, the Company can motivate and reward the Eligible
Participants who have contributed to the Company by enhancing its
performance, improving its management and operation, and providing
it with good advice and ideas.

Eligible participants

The eligible participants of the New Scheme to whom Option(s) may be
granted by the Board shall include any employees, directors, advisors,
consultants, and any shareholders of any members of the Group or any
invested entities or any holders of any securities issued by any members
of the Group or any invested entities.
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(iiif) Maximum number of shares

(@)  The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all Options which may be granted under the New Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (“Scheme
Mandate Limit") shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date on which the New Scheme will be
approved and adopted by the shareholders, unless the Company
obtains a refresh approval from the shareholders pursuant to
paragraph (b) below. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the New Scheme shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating whether the Scheme Mandate Limit has been
exceeded.

(b)  The Company may seek approval of the shareholders in general
meetings to renew the Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the
Scheme Mandate Limit so renewed must not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of the approval of the renewal by the
shareholders. Upon any such renewal, all Options granted under
the New Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the New Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company and exercised options) prior to the
approval of such renewal shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating whether the renewed Scheme Mandate Limit has
been exceeded. In seeking the approval, the Company shall send
a circular to the shareholders.

() The Company may grant Options to the eligible participant(s)
beyond the Scheme Mandate Limit if the grant of such Options is
specifically approved by the shareholders in general meeting. In
seeking such approval, a circular must be sent to the shareholders
containing a generic description of the identified eligible
participant(s), the number and terms of the Options to be granted,
the purpose of granting Options to the identified eligible
participant(s), and how the terms of these Options serve such
purpose.

Notwithstanding the above, the maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Scheme and options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

(@)  The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the Options granted under the New Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding Options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the then total issued
share capital of the Company (the “Individual Limit").

(b)  Any further grant of Options to an eligible participant in excess of
the Individual Limit (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant must be subject to the shareholders’
approval in general meeting of the Company with such eligible
participant and his associates abstaining from voting. A circular
must be sent to the shareholders disclosing the identity of the
identified eligible participant(s), the number and terms of the
Options granted and to be granted, the number and terms of the
Options to be granted to such identified eligible participant(s)
must be fixed before the shareholders’ approval and the date of
meeting of the Board for proposing such further grant should be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the
exercise price.

Offer acceptance period and option price

An offer of grant of an Option may be accepted by an eligible participant
within 28 days from the date of the offer of grant of the Option. A
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant
of an Option. To the extent that the offer of grant of an Option is not
accepted within twenty-eight (28) days from the date on which the offer
for the grant of Options is made in the manner indicated herein, it will
be deemed to have been irrevocably declined and lapsed automatically.

Timing for exercise of Options

An Option shall be exercisable in whole or in part and in accordance
with the terms of the New Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each Grantee, which period
may commence on the day on which the offer for the grant of Options is
made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years commencing
from the date the Board makes an offer of the grant of an Option subject
to the provisions for early termination thereof. The Directors have the
discretion to impose a minimum period for which an Option has to be
held before the exercise of the subscription rights attaching thereto on
case by case basis.
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(vii) Subscription price

Subject to the adjustment made in accordance with the terms of the
New Scheme, the exercise price in respect of any particular Option shall
be such price as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at
the time of making the offer of grant of an option (which shall be stated
in the letter containing the offer of grant of an option) but in any case
the exercise price must be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the
date of the offer of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no Options
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Old Scheme and the
New Scheme.

As the New Scheme had expired on 26 May 2021, there were no Shares
available for issue under the New Scheme as at the date of this annual
report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During FY2020, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions which were required to be disclosed (the “Disclosed Continuing
Connected Transactions”’) in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

On 10 September 2020, Smartronic Limited (“Smartronic’, an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company), Nutronic Healthcare Company
Limited (“Nutronic Healthcare”) and Nutronic Biomedical Group Limited
(“Nutronic Biomedical”) entered into a distribution agreement (the
"Distribution Agreement’), pursuant to which, (i) Nutronic Healthcare has
conditionally agreed to grant the exclusive right to Smartronic to sell, market
and distribute certain products series including but not limited to FertiCare
series, ConcepCare series and NatalCare series, being male and female fertility
supplements within the PRC and Hong Kong; and (i) Nutronic Biomedical has
conditionally agreed to authorise and grant Smartronic the right to use the
Nutronic trademarks in relation to the Distribution Agreement, from 10
September 2020 to 31 December 2022.
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Smartronic is held as to 51% by Forever Triumph Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and as to 49% by Nutronic Biomedical.
Nutronic Healthcare is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Nutronic
Biomedical. By virtue of such 49% equity interest in Smartronic by Nutronic
Biomedical, Nutronic Biomedical and Nutronic Healthcare are connected
persons of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the Distribution Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

According to the announcement of the Company dated 10 September 2020,
the proposed annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
Distribution Agreement for the financial years ended/ending 31 December
2020, 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 are RMB3,900,000,
RMB6,400,000 and RMB6,400,000 respectively.

The aggregate transaction amount charged by Nutronic Healthcare to
Smartronic for the year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB764,128.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transactions set out above, and are of the view that the
Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions have been entered into under
the following circumstances:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing each of the
Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

RSM Hong Kong was engaged to report on the Group’s Disclosed Continuing
Connected Transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. RSM Hong Kong has issued unqualified letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
independent auditor’s assurance report on continuing connected transactions
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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In respect of the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions, RSM Hong
Kong concluded that:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions have not been approved
by the Board.

(i) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions.

(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of the Disclosed Continuing
Connected Transactions, nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions
have exceeded the annual cap disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 10 September 2020.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During FY2020, the Group entered into transactions with related parties as set
out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements. Apart from the items
disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected Transactions”, all other material
related party transactions did not constitute non-exempt connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 19 to 33.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For FY2020, the aggregate revenue attributable to the largest customer and
the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 12.0%
and 43.0% of the Group's total revenue for the year respectively; and the
aggregate purchases from the largest and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 18.6% and 43.1% of the Group's total
purchases for the year, respectively.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors of the Company, their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), and the existing
shareholders of the Company who own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had any interests in the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers at any time during the year.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Details of
responsibilities of Directors for the consolidated financial statements are set
out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on page 52. The Directors are
responsible for the proper keeping of accounting record in order to secure
assets of the Company and the Group.

The Directors are also responsible for adopting reasonable measures to prevent
and check any fraudulences and irregularities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for FY2020 is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 8 of this annual report
which forms part of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks, including
some which are specific to the Group or the industries in which the Group
operates as well as others that are common to most businesses. The Group's
major risks are summarised below.
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Financial risk

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's overall
risk management procedures covers the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. Details about the Group’s financial risk management are set out
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Manpower and retention risk

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills, experience and
competence which would meet the business objectives of the Group. The
Group will provide attractive remuneration package to suitable candidates and
personnel, propose incentives to retain talents and optimise internal training
and promotion mechanism.

Risk of rapid technological change

The industry development of the segments engaged by the Group changes
rapidly. If the Group fails to promptly react to the change in technologies to
satisfy customers’ demands, it might result in an adverse impact on the
financial status and operating results of the Group. The Group, therefore, strives
to response swiftly to the market to provide more comprehensive product
solutions and services to customers.

Risk of change in economy, politics and government policies

Most assets of the Group were located in Hong Kong and the PRC and
approximately 95% of the income was from the business in Hong Kong and
the PRC in 2020. Therefore, the operating results, financial status and prospects
of the Group are influenced by the changes in economy, politics and
government policies in Hong Kong and the PRC. Hence, the Company will
reinforce the communications with business partners, enhance the innovation
on technology, strengthen the aftersales maintenance market, consolidate and
ensure stable and healthy development of Hong Kong and the PRC market.

Risk of data loss or operation interruption

The Group is dependent on information technology systems and networks.
Any material disruption or slowdown of the information technology systems
could cause loss of the intellectual property rights of customers, suppliers and
the Group. Therefore, the Group established internal policy on source code
management, data security, regular system checks and data backup to
safeguard data security and integrity.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group committed to implement various ways to encourage in compliance
with environmental legislation and promote awareness towards environmental
protection to the employees. It implements green office practices such as
setting default double-sided printing, promoting to reuse single-side printed
papers, encouraging staff to maintain electronic records in order to reduce
paper consumption, reducing energy consumption by switching off idle
lightings and electrical appliances and setting optimal temperature on the air
conditioning. The Group will continuously review its environmental practices
and consider implementing further measures in its operation.

For details, please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group's business is mainly operated by its subsidiaries in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group accordingly shall comply
with relevant laws and regulations in the operating regions. During FY2020 and
up to the date of this annual report, as far as the Company is aware, there was
no material breach or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by
the Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group. The Group will seek for professional legal opinions from legal advisors
when necessary to ensure that the Group’s transactions and business are in
conformity with all applicable laws and regulations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees are the valuable assets and regards the
personal development of its employees as highly important. The Group wants
to continue to be an attractive employer for committed employees. During
FY2020, there was no dispute on salary payments and all accrued
remunerations, in all kinds, were settled on or before their respective due dates,
as stipulated under individual employee’s employment contract. The Group
also ensures that all the employees are reasonably remunerated by regular
review and the policies on salary increment, promotion, bonus, allowances and
all other related benefits are updated from time to time. Being people-oriented,
the Group is committed to provide a safe and healthy workplace for its
employees and encourage them to have a work-life balance. For details of
employment and labour practices, please refer to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The Group appreciates the importance of maintaining good relationship with
customers and suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term business goals.
The Group values the feedback from customers through regular
communication to provide customers with enhanced services and address
their concerns in a timely manner. For suppliers, the Group assures their
performance for the quality of delivered products.

During FY2020, there is no circumstance of any event between the Group and
its employees, customers and suppliers which will have a significant impact on
the Group's business and on which the Group's success depends.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company'’s listed securities during FY2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of
association or Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of its Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during FY2020.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 7 May 2021, the Company has withdrawn its request for the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange’s decision to uphold the decision of the
Stock Exchange to suspend trading in the Shares under Rule 6.01(3) of the
Listing Rules for failure to maintain a sufficient level of operations as required
under Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules to warrant the continued listing of the
Shares and to proceed with cancellation of the listing of the Shares under Rule
6.01A(1) of the Listing Rules if trading remains suspended for a continuous
period of 18 months to be referred to the Listing Review Committee of the
Stock Exchange for review. Pursuant to Rule 6.01A of the Listing Rules, the
Company shall have a period of 18 months from 1 April 2021 (being the date
from which trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange has been suspended),
expiring on 30 September 2022 to take appropriate actions to demonstrate its
compliance with Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules, failing which the Stock
Exchange may cancel the listing of the Shares. Further announcements will be
made by the Company in respect of this matter as and when appropriate and
in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report

EFEHRS

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong Kong
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong will be put at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Yang Xin Min
Chairman

31 May 2021

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SMARTAC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SMARTAC GROUP CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong FE

T +852 2598 5123
F +852 2598 7230

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Smartac International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Smartac Group China Holdings Limited)
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on pages 56 to 176,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the basis for
qualified opinion paragraphs set out below, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

(a)

(b)

Recoverability of trade receivables

As set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements, the
carrying amount of trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB61,387,000 net of allowances of RMB1,299,000. Allowance for
impairment of trade receivables charged to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was RMB936,000. Up to the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements, trade receivables of
RMB42,586,000 as at 31 December 2020 have not been settled. The
Group has issued legal demand letters to a number of customers in
respect of overdue amounts. In addition, we have not been provided
with customer specific credit information in respect of new customers
during the year ended 31 December 2020 with no prior credit history
with the Group or existing customers who were in default of payment.
As a result, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves that the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables was properly stated as at 31 December 2020.

Net realisable value of inventories

As set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, the
carrying amount of inventories as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB22,349,000 net of allowance of RMB9,873,000. Allowance for
inventories charged to profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 was RMB8,356,000. Up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, inventories of approximately RMB2.5
million have been realised through sales. The sales forecast prepared by
the management for the period to 31 December 2021 shows that
realisation of inventories will continue to be slow due to the uncertain
market conditions. As a result, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves that the allowance for net
realisable value of the inventories was properly stated as at 31 December
2020.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
"Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENIR S

REEZSEIA

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were ~ BAEEXEERRIERMNZEZHE - RAY
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the ~ AREfAT B E MR ZBZRAEEZE 2 EIE ° 4
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the ~ EEE TR R MIFZBEBEAMERRMHA
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion  E R BF#EITRIE - BR M T eHZSZEHEEH
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key BEZER - ZFIE &3 2 BB EXFHE AR

audit matter we identified is going concern assessment.

Key Audit Matter
HREELEE

BIRERHE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ERNNEEFAREREE

Going concern assessment

FEEETE

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
incurred a net loss of RMB56,950,000 and had net cash outflow
from its operating activities of RMB142,022,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020. These conditions indicated that there is
uncertainty about the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern as the Group’s cash flows from operations was not
sufficient to cover its operating costs and working capital
requirements.

FRIGAVEBRERMT 2 BEEEEE_T-_TF+=A
=+—HIEFEELEBRFEARK 569500007 R& &)
BB RESMLFEARE 1420220007 - AR EEEH
REMBHERETTANENEEERNRIREEERFR
WZEFRABTE BESEENRELLRNTFETETIL -

Notwithstanding the above, the Group’s management considered
that it was appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. Management also considered
that there was not a material uncertainty in relation to going
concern based on their assessment of the Group’s cash position
and expected liquidity requirements for the foreseeable future.
BEMEXFM s BSEETEERE  BEFEBELCEREER
HRENBRABEE - ERENRR  REHEE H5EH
REMARFIRRRZFEHRBESRTE 271G - X AFE
ERARBBEE T ERATEEN -

Our procedures in relation to management assessment
of going concern included:

RN EREREESFACETAZEFEE

Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and the
assumptions adopted by management in the
preparation of the cash flow forecasts based on the
historical performance of the Group's operations and our
knowledge of the business;

BiE BEEEXRBIBERREBRMANZEL M
BoAAERERRAERERNERARRACEE
BABBERBRRZAEIE

Discussing with management their plans for the
development of the Online to Offline commerce
business, Electronic payment solutions business and
other operations, and their plans to control costs, and
evaluating the reasonableness of the cash flow forecasts
based on those plans;

HERENwRHEERERR CRTREABER  BF
XA REBREMER 258 URHEBH
ERIRAR 58 - WIREZETEIERERER
Az S8

Considering the impact of reasonably possible downside
changes in the assumptions underlying the cash flow
forecasts and assessing the possible mitigating actions
identified by management.
ZRReREBRANZHARREEAIGETNES 2
T8 WaHhERERAIZ TR ERITE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BENIR S
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
reportis Mr. Liu Eugene.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 May 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FeRmBEHMEERmR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE-—F_FFF+_A=+—HIFFE

2020 2019
—E-EH —ET-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hfat AR%T T ARBT T
(Re-presented)
(BFZE5)
Revenue A 8 191,648 25,797
Cost of sales and services HE RARTEAR A (169,551) (12,182)
Gross profit EF 22,097 13,615
Fair value gain on investment properties REMERNR BN 20 800 1,200
Other income E U A 9 7,982 9,044
Selling expenses HERX (27,565) (8,933)
Administrative expenses ITHRHX (45,084) (36,097)
Other operating expenses HEh 25 (10,043) (1,718)
(Allowance for)/reversal of allowance FEURBR 3k () B fE R ml
for trade receivables (936) 150
Allowance for deposits and other receivables — #2é K B th i Ui 238 4 (3,876) 4)
Reversal of impairment loss on B fE OB B B 18 1 [l
other receivables 18 190
Impairment loss on goodwiill FEREEE 23 - (11,451)
Impairment loss on intangible assets EIE EREEE 23(a) - (26,962)
Loss from operations KEEE (56,607) (60,966)
Finance costs B RS AR AR 11 (1,201) (597)
Share of result of an associate FE(E—FEEt S AT EE 26 1,090 1,063
Loss before tax MR AIEIE (56,718) (60,500)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris®i(BH), He 12 (232) 8,100
Loss for the year REEEE 13 (56,950) (52,400)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEEE
for the year:
Items that may be reclassified to profitor loss: A E#HEE1E 2 EA -
Exchange differences on translating MEBINETRSEEZIE N
foreign operations =% (7,319) 3,756
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or  JaUsH — & i B A &) sF il f &= 3
loss on de-registration of a subsidiary DEEEmCERER (1) -
Other comprehensive income TEFHMEEKE (BE)
for the year, net of tax (7,320) 3,756
Total comprehensive income rEEXHRRERE
for the year (64,270) (48,644)

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SFEREEEMEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—E-EH —E-nF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hifat ARMT T ARBT T
(Re-presented)
(BFZ7)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTALTEGEAFERS
Owners of the Company ZAN/NE (49,408) (37,926)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M R (7,542) (14,474)
(56,950) (52,400)
Total comprehensive income for the UTATEGRREE
year attributable to: 2HENEAE .
Owners of the Company RATPRE (57,329) (34,129)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M o (6,941) (14,515)
(64,270) (48,644)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE
Basic (RMB cents) ER(ARED) 18(a) (0.88) 067)
Diluted (RMB cents) BE(ARED) 18(b) (0.88) (067)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR RR

At iiBecember 2020 BPEE S e g Ea =rk [

2020 2019
—E-EH —ET-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HtaE ARMT T ARBT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - = MR AR 19 9,096 7077
Investment properties WEYZE 20 57,800 57,000
Right-of-use assets FRESE 21 8,136 4,096
Construction in progress HEETR 22 - 320
Goodwill B 23 - i
Intangible assets EEE 24 433 459
Deposit for acquisition of intangible assets ~ WESEL EER S 2,800
Investment in an associate R—REEERAFIRE 26 5,024 3,934
Financial assets at fair value through other BARETAEMEEKE
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’) ([BAREFTFAHMEZ2E
W)z emEE 27 - .
83,289 72,886
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 28 22,349 3,310
Trade receivables JEUR BR X 29 61,387 5,863
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE{ X 184 K H i fE Yk 30 27,886 13,661
Due from related parties JiE UK g 45(a) = 200
Current tax assets EMHIEEE 139 139
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEESEED 37 60,469 226,374
172,230 249,547
Current liabilities nEBaE
Trade payables FERTBRIR 32 2,505 1,590
Accruals and other payables JEETE A M E M ER R 33 25,540 21,381
Contract liabilities AMBaE 156 107
Due to a director FEfSEEFIA 34 - 896
Due to related parties JE 1S BB 45(a) - 5,949
Bank loans RITER 35 8,000 9,000
Lease liabilities HEAR 36 3,393 1,330
Current tax liabilities EHBIEAE 189 119
39,783 40,372
Net current assets REBEEFE 132,447 209,175
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARG 215,736 282,061

Smartac International Holdings Limited

2020 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2020 =

=

=

maMBRRR
=

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
k=3 AR¥T T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities ERBERS
Lease liabilities HERE 36 3,012 675
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBAE 7 13,119 12,970
16,131 13,645
NET ASSETS BEE 199,605 268416
Capital and reserves EXRK#E
Share capital R& 2R 38 252,439 252,439
Reserves Eike 40(a) (74,325) (10,850)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7K/ BIA% 3R FE(E 25 178,114 241,589
Non-controlling interests VAR 21,491 26,827
TOTAL EQUITY MR 199,605 268416

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 May 2021 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Yang Xin Min
BHER
Director

EF

IIAETRERE -

BEeRN _ T _—SFRA=+—HH#HERAT

Cheng Faat Ting Gary

BET

Director

EF

RIREEERARAA
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
D8R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #BZ -—FE=FF —H=+—HILFZ

60

At January 2019 R-Z-h%¥-A-H 252439 1269192 172 (101.271) (9619 (8385) (2000) (1,124810) 25718 4138 317060
Total comprehensiveincome ~ AEE2EMZEEE

forthe year - - - 3797 - - - (37926) (34129 (14515) (48,644)
Changes inequityfortheyear ~ AEEERED ; - - 3797 - - = (37926) (34129 (14515) (48644)
At31 December 019and M =E-fE+-A=+-R

1 January 2020 R=Z-ZF-f-A 252439 1,269,192 m (97,474) (9,619) (8,385) (2,000) (1,162,736 241,589 26,827 268,416
Total comprehensiveincome ~ AEERERFLE

forthe year - - - (7,921) - - - (49,408) (57,329) (6,941) (64,270)
De-tegistration of asubsiciary S — B A AR = = = S - - - - - (86) (86)
Disposal of subsidiary without i EHBARTTELE

loss of control 1l - - - 23 - - - (704 (721) 899 m
Acquisition of non-controlling R EIRRRIER

interest - = - (63) (4,568) - - (788) (5419) 43 (4,676)
Captal contributon from FERERTE

non-controlling interests = o - - - - - - - 4 L
Changesinequityfortheyear  AEEERED) - - - (8,007) (4,568) - - (509000 (63475) (533)  (68811)
At31 December 2020 RZZ-F5+-A=1-H 252,439 1,269,192 1m (105,481) (14,187) (8,385) (2,000) (1,213,636 178,114 21,491 199,605

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EEIRERE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE-—F _FF+_A=+—HIFFE

2020 2019
—E-EfF —T—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HtaE AR¥T ARETF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEECZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax bR AT E 1R (56,718) (60,500)
Adjustments for: RRFPEE
Depreciation of property, W - BB RRETE
plant and equipment 1,821 1,448
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREESERE 3,250 1,594
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH 116 6,783
Interest income M EWA (1,179) (2,714
Finance costs B R AR 1,201 597
Allowance for inventories FEEE 8,356 1,718
Allowance for/(reversal of allowance for) JEUG AR TR (R a)
trade receivables 936 (150)
Allowance for deposits and other B& K LAt JE WK
receivables 3,876 4
Bad debts written-off B sHERR 14 -
Impairment loss on property, plant ME - RE NMREREEE
and equipment 1,550 -
Impairment loss on goodwill AEREEE - 11,451
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEERBEEBRE = 26,962
Reversal of impairment loss on E b e ORI B B 18
other receivables e (18) (190)
Change in fair value of "EME L AAEER
investment properties (800) (1,200)
Share of result of an associate i ) /NI (1,090) (1,063)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME  BENKRE
plant and equipment EiE (M) 8 (%)
Written-off of inventories MiEFE 19 -
Written-off of property, plant WEHYE - BB R &E
and equipment 115 =
Gain on de-registration of a subsidiary BE— R E A A
ZWEs (11) =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B AR 2 ek (3) =
Gain on early termination of a lease RERIEAE 2 s (48) =
Rent concession HeEe (32) =

BB RARAR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#2 F ®ri-_n=+ £iiey

2020 2019
—E-EH —ET-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hifat ARET T ARBT T
Operating loss before working capital EiEE o B 2 L EEE
changes (38,637) (15,265)
Increase in inventories FEEN (27,310) (3.196)
Increase in trade receivables FEUS AR FRIE BN (56,426) (3620)
Increase in prepayments, deposits AR - EBe REAMm
and other receivables JE W RIS N (18,073) (5375)
Decrease in due from JE TS R A 22 R TR
non-controlling interest - 33
Decrease/(increase) in due from JEUs BE S 5 TR IE R
related parties (18n) 200 (114)
Increase in trade payables FE T BR FRE N 915 521
Decrease in accruals and other payables EstE R kA ENFUR D (1,094) (906)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities aHaEEm CRd) 49 (135)
(Decrease)/increase in due to a director PR EEEIE CR) /1 (896) 863
Decrease in due to related parties FE A BB 5 SRR R - (121)
Cash used in from operations KEEBFHERA RS (141,272) (27,315)
Income taxes paid ERPTEH (8) (623)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGERE (742) (119)
Net cash used in operating activities KEESFER 2 FRE (142,022) (28,057)

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

;‘\5

7—7

maRERER
F+-A=+—HALFE

2020 2019
—E-BHE —ZT-hEF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hifat ARMT T ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHEEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB E ¥ « BE M &R (5,322) (1,465)
Deposit for acquisition of intangible assets W& B EEIE S (2,800) <
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - WERKHEE
plant and equipment FXQE] 5 8
Payment for construction in progress YR TIRET = (320)
Purchase of intangible assets BEREEE (90) (743)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — B A RIS R 3 =
Bank interests received BUERTTH B 1,179 2,714
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEE(FER) EEz
investing activities FIRE (7,025) 194
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETHELEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Principal elements of lease payments HENZASI S (2,797) (1,623)
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITENK (9,000) (9,000)
Bank loans raised %Eﬁﬁ/_é%’\ 8,000 9,000
Repayment to related parties BB AN 5 58 (362) =
Acquisition of non-controlling interest Ui B e H%Zé = (4,676) -
Disposal of interest to non-controlling interest [A] JEF5E A% 25 S 25
without loss of control S R Il 172 T
Contribution from non-controlling interest ~ JEIRR ST & 49 -
Interests on bank loans and other RITEFRAE REAE T
finance cost paid EUR AN (459) (478)
Net cash used in financing activities BEESFER 2 FRE (9,073) (2,101)
RIRE TR AR AR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE_—F_FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

2020 2019

S5l

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
wi BPGLEEA & AR%TI

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND REeRREEEBYRDFHE

CASH EQUIVALENTS (158,120) (29,964)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXRE T ERE (7,785) 3,879
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—B—HZBEER

1 JANUARY HEEEY 226,374 252,459
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R+=-—A=+—-H%2

31 DECEMBER RERRESEEY 60,469 226,374
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRBRSEB/YHN

EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents HERESEED 37 60,469 226,374

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tr e M ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-—F-—FF+ _HA=+—HIFFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Smartac International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Smartac
Group China Holdings Limited) (the “Company”) was incorporated on
18 July 2000 in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its
principal place of business is Room 2101, 21st Floor, COFCO Tower, 262
Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December 2020,
Mr. Yang Xin Min is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB"). IFRSs comprise International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS"); International Accounting Standards (“IAS"); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

1.

—HREH

IR IR B IR A A (BITEH B 8
EERBRAR) ([RATHRZEE
FLtATN\BREREHSAFERLER
EHEAMKIRERRBER AR - K
A A & it #%¥ = B Hb 4k & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands = H =
TR AR B REEE TITE 26250
FIEAE 2112101 E - AR R ZBRH
EBMERZMER AR ([BRAT]) E
R T e

A oA

RRRRBREEZERRF - KB ARIE
REBHN A M ERRMEES

AABEERE R_E_ZTF+_A1
=+—B HBHREEREADRRRKE
Hl7 o

RNEE

ZEFAVBRREBRERE S5 R
ZEg((BIREEAZEES ) Rz
P B JE P B IR B %5 e o 2 ) (T B PR B 3%
BEEADRE - BRMBEHREERE
15 B R B 755 5 22 ) (1 B o B 78 3 o 2
AID) BT ER((EMREETEA )
K2k  ZEHEEUBRENTEHR
prEnm EmARA(T EWRA]) 2 BAE
BIEXEEBRAHRAI(F6228) 2 H
BHRE AKERRAEZSAHER
TXHE -

BEREEt 2T B RME T &
RIEFTBEIRMBHRE LR ZFER
AEEEM SR EREREA R
BERM - M3 REZFEEMHEHREA
PTRBR N E AT B E St B EE R E
RZERARE AR 2] MRIERTE
A5 B2 A ST BRES 2 EF

RIREEERARAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The directors have given careful consideration to the going concern of
the Group in light of the fact that the Group incurred a net loss of
RMB56,950,000 and had net cash outflow from its operating activities of
RMB142,022,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.

In addition, the Company announced on 8 November 2020 that the
Stock Exchange has decided that the Company has failed to maintain a
sufficient level of operations as required under Rule 13.24 of the Listing
Rules to warrant the continued listing of the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”), and that trading in the Shares shall be suspended under Rule
6.01(3) of the Listing Rules which would limit the Company’s ability to
raise funds through equity financing.

In view of these circumstances, the board of directors (the “Board”) has
estimated the Group's cash requirements by the preparation of a Group
cashflow forecast for the next twelve months and the Board is of the
opinion that, together with the internal financial resources of the Group,
the Group has sufficient working capital for its present requirements,
that is for at least the next twelve months commencing from the date of
the consolidated financial statements. Hence, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a)

Application of new and revised IFRSs

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark

IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Reform

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendments to IFRS
16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions.

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and
the amendments to IFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that states
“"information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments
also clarify that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements taken as a
whole.

The application of the amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

3. RIS RAZEETEIFRRMFIMEE

A
(a)
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A
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—EFE-A-HHEZERABZFE
HAfRI 98 I A3 - AR BT S B TS
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RERHEAE R
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IR B R S 2R
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AR 39 5 MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised IFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify specific hedge accounting requirements
to allow hedge accounting to continue for affected hedges during
the period of uncertainty before the hedged items or hedging
instruments affected by the current interest rate benchmarks are
amended as a result of the on-going interest rate benchmark
reform.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group as the Group is not affected by the
interest rate benchmark reform.

Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that allows a
lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate whether certain qualifying
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions”)
are lease modifications and, instead, account for those rent
concessions as if they were not lease modifications.

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendments and
applies the practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19 Related
Rent Concessions granted to the Group during the year.
Consequently, rent concessions received have been accounted for
as negative variable lease payments recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurred (see note 21). There is no impact on the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2020.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

Other than the amendments to IFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions, the Group has not early applied any new and revised
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2020. These new and revised
IFRSs include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark

Reform — Phase 2

BB B imE ERF o5 - BREERE 395 - BRM RS

rRE BB R
E_Tr L f=+—HILFE

3. RN RAEEITEIRMBREE
A (48)

(b)

CHEMRE i sk E M 2 #iET RAENEET
Eilad g 2l

BRBIBR B 15 S 2RI SE 16 5% 2B AT
2019EREESRABES TR
AEEL EIEFEAITACEME
R-F_FF—A—BRBAZHR
FERARERZH 7] RAEIEFTEIRR
S ERER o B REIER]
BIRR B 5 3R 5 YE R B FE A T Al pE £
AEEBH 2 ER -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

R BEsz %
Bzt BmEN

1 January 2021

ZERIZE 757 x5 =
WW% HAERNE 45 R BRI R EERIZE 1657 2 BRI FI R AR T

SE2PEER

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
B B T ¥R 5 R B R 3 5 2 A AT L SR R 2 4Rt oo mas e =
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022

B gt ERIE 1658 BRI % - BB M&RE - (EHE B &R Z Pr1S50E S G Hi
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
BIFR g ERFE 7R ETBRIESH — BITEHOZAAR =Z - s
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
BERMBREEN - N\FE_Z_TFRH 2 FEUE o e e Hie
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
BEREERE 1R EF R AES BRRE LIRS e S

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating to that
subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of
the consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the
goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right
contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill which is included in the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that associate and (ii) the Group's
entire carrying amount of that associate (including goodwill) and
any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) which is the
Company’s presentation currency and the functional
currency of the principal operating subsidiaries of the
Group. The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollars (‘"HKS$"). The directors consider that choosing
RMB as the presentation currency best suits the need of
shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)
(iii)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company'’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company's presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are held for use in the supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below). Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write-off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

3.33%-33.33%,
over the lease term
12.5%-33.33%,
over the lease term
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

Buildings and leasehold improvement

Office equipment and fixtures

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and plant and equipment pending installation and is stated at
cost less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the
relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured
at that time.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is withdrawn from use. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an investment property is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 4(t).

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets.

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment properties are carried at fair value in accordance
with note 4(f).

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

4. EEREEEE (R
(9) HHE R

(i

FEBEREEA (H)

KB R E R HERH LA
REEVIIRKATE  H
RABHREERBENVIGRS
B MmLERRBBE BRI ZA
L EMBEE N R EME
ERMEMIBEERRA - &
BRANBAT EREEE
) X AN 75 B2 4 4 ) B R R AR
MEE RERBHEEES
HPT I E A O A RTRCAS -
YRR EH B E R HRKE
MEMHEER - ERESR
EHBRERANRBATER
BEBEIE  ETARE
MEEENERAREESR
B4 R BT -

HRAKEASEETER
HgERENRGHEEEEE
PERNEREEE 87
HBEHMERERFRERN
HMARE - TR £H%
BERZMGAAERFAR
HE(ABREERE) ANER
SEITE o

ENATRERERS IRIE
BB B 7 3R 5 2R RS 9 SR AETT
SERIE XYFEARE
AR NS RRBNARE
HABWESBEIEENRL
AEAEREEERA

RIREEERARAA

2020 FEHR

8l



82

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is
not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease.
In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16.
In such cases, the group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were not a
lease modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred. An internally generated
intangible asset arising from the Group's software development is
recognised only if all of the following conditions are met:

— Anasset is created that can be identified (such as software
and new processes);

— It is probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits; and

—  The development cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
of 5 years. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified
and recognised separately from goodwill where they satisfy the
definition of an intangible asset and their fair values can be
measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is their fair
value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

/)]

(k)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and acquired separately (Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or loss on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Software development costs 5 years
Customers relationship 6 years
Computer software 5 years
Trademark 9 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using weighted-average basis. The cost of
finished goods comprises all cost of purchase and other cost
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. A
contract liability would also be recognised if the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset
or a net contract liability is presented. For, multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()]

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group's
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial assets

(n)

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless the
equity investment is not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or
FVTOC, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for expected credit losses (“ECLSs”).

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under IFRSs. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out in () to (s) below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax (“"VAT") or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of merchandises is recognised when
control of the goods has been transferred, being when the goods
have been delivered to the customer’s specific location (delivery).
Following delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered to the
customers as this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of
time is required before payment is due.

Commission income is recognised when the services are
delivered.

Revenue from sales of hardware and software and installation
service is recognised when the control of goods and services have
been transferred to customer upon completion of installation. A
receivable is recognised by the Group when the hardware being
delivered or/and software being installed at customers' location as
this presents the point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.

Other IT support service and other service income is recognised
when the services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Obligation for contributions to the local government of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them with
the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment properties are
depreciable and are held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties is measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the
Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax
authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be use by individual group entities in their income
tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred taxes are
determined consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax
filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is
reflected by using either the most likely amount or the expected
value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or that are not
yet available for use are reviewed for impairment annually and
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where an
asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the goodwill
of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other assets of the CGU.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused by
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent
that they reverse the impairment.
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information considered includes the future prospects of
the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained
from economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that relate to the Group's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt
obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4.,

(z) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments

are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial

recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is

determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in

the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the

ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow

obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when
the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade” in

accordance with the globally understood definition or if an

external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
"performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used

to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

—  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above.
As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting
date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a
lease receivable, the cash flow used for determining the ECLs is
consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivables accordance with IFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL
at the current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the reporting
period are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

5. CRITICALJUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(i) Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgement that has the most significant

effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are

dealt with below).

(a) Contingent Liabilities

The Company acquired 51% equity interest in LCE Group
Limited (“LCE Group”) and its subsidiaries (the "LCE
Group’) in 2017. Neither the Company nor the vendor has
reported the transaction to the relevant PRC tax authorities.
The PRC tax authorities however could impose penalty on
unpaid enterprise income tax (“EIT") according to the
relevant PRC laws and regulations. The directors, after
consulting the Group's PRC legal counsel, are of opinion
that a provision of RMB6,180,000 (2019: RMB6,602,000) had
been adequately made, and considered that the risk of
having a penalty imposed by the PRC tax authorities is
reasonably low. The penalty is disclosed under contingent

liabilities.

(b) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group's investment properties
portfolios and concluded that the Group's investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group's
deferred tax for investment properties, the directors have
adopted the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model is recovered through

sale is rebutted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(i) Critical judgement in applying accounting policies (i)

(Continued)

(c) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in accounting policy disclosed in note 4(2),
ECLs are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL
for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3
assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased, the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable

forward-looking information.

(d) Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement date
for leases that include renewal options exercisable by the
Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the
renewal options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the
Group to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the importance of

that underlying asset to the Group’s operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in other
properties leases have not been included in the lease
liability because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption. See note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements for further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant
event or significant change in circumstance that is within
the Group’s control. During the current financial year, no

lease term has been reassessed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

(a)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

During the year, income tax expense of RMB232,000 (2019:
income tax credit of RMB8,100,000) was recognised to profit
or loss based on the estimated profits after adjusting
relevant items according to applicable tax rules.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

5. CRITICALJUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
construction in progress and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment, construction in progress
and right-of-use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
recoverable amounts.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment,
construction in progress and right-of-use assets as at 31
December 2020 were RMB9,096,000 (2019: RMB7,077,000),
Nil (2019: RMB320,000) and RMB8,136,000 (2019:
RMB4,096,000) respectively.
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

Amortisation and impairment on intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
amortisation for the Group's intangible assets. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite, based on the expected usage and technical
obsolescence from the changes in the market demands or
services output from the assets. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised over the expected useful
economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible assets may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for the intangible assets with a finite useful life are
reviewed by the management at least at the end of each
reporting period. The Group assesses whether any
indication of impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy. The recoverable amounts of intangible assets have
been determined based on value in use calculations of each
CGU the intangible assets belonged which requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

No impairment loss of was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB26,962,000). The carrying
amount of intangible assets as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB433,000 (2019: RMB459,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

5. CRITICALJUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer
to assess the fair values of the investment properties. In
determining the fair values, the valuer has utilised a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates. The directors
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
method of valuation and inputs used are reflective of the
current market conditions.

Whilst the Group considers valuations of the Group's
investment properties are the best estimates, the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in greater market volatility
depending on how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve, which have led to high degree of uncertainties
in respect of the valuations in the current year.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2020 was RMB57,800,000 (2019: RMB57,000,000)
after recognition of the fair value gain of RMB800,000 (2019:
RMB1,200,000) in the profit or loss during the year.

Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables based on the credit risk of these
receivables. The amount of the impairment loss based on
ECL model is measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENT AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

(f

Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables (Continued)

Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered by the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has increased the expected
loss rates in the current year as there is higher risk that a
prolonged pandemic could lead to increased credit default
rates. The information about the ECL and the Group's trade
receivables are disclosed in note 6(b).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is RMB61,387,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB1,299,000) (2019: RMB5,863,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB410,000)).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of deposits
and other receivables is RMB14,084,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of RMB3,944,000) (2019: RMB11,872,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of RMB78,000)).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on
the ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the allowance amount involves
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome in
future is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and allowance
charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, RMB8,356,000 (2019:
RMB1,718,000) of allowance for slow-moving inventories
was recognised in profit or loss.
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RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZT -_FTF _—HA=+—HILFZ

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as most of
its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in HKS, RMB, Euro (“EUR") and United States dollars
("US$"), of which some currencies are the functional currencies of
the Group’s entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group does not expect any significant exposure to foreign
currency risk on US$ as HKS is pegged to US$ and it is not
considered likely that there will be a material fluctuation in US$/
HKS exchange rate.

At 31 December 2020, if the RMB had weakened 5 per cent against
the HKS$ with all other variables held constant, consolidated loss
after tax for the year would have been RMB195,000 lower (2019:
RMB377,000 lower), arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents and trade
receivables (2019: cash and cash equivalents and accruals and
other payables) denominated in HKS/RMB. If the RMB had
strengthened 5 per cent against the HKS with all other variables
held constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year would have
been RMB195,000 higher (2019: RMB377,000 higher), arising
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange difference on cash and
cash equivalents and trade receivables (2019: cash and cash
equivalents and accruals and other payables) denominated in
HKS/RMB.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, if the EUR had weakened 5 per cent against
the HKS with all other variables held constant, consolidated loss
after tax for the year would have been RMB96,000 lower, arising
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange difference on trade
receivables denominated in HKS/EUR. If the EUR had strengthened
5 per cent against the HKS with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have been
RMB96,000 higher, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on trade receivables denominated in HKS/
EUR.

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments. The Group's exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with high
credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to
the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 60% (2019: 53%) of
the total gross carrying amount of trade receivables were due
from the Group’'s five largest customers as at 31 December 2020
and all of the customers are located in Hong Kong, the PRC or the
United States (the "US").
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

6. MBEKEIE (8)

Credit risk (Continued) (b) (SEAES (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) PEUK BR SR (48)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an NEBIRBBEEREE 2 HATER
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using SEEBz 2B RKERRZE
provisional matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience BEE BN AEERTEEEE
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for different LRI EBRTIAREDEEREE
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due status TRz BEER - WERBTEH
is not further distinguished between the Group's different MR EEREREE—FEHR
customer bases. SETREPER -
The following table provides information about the Group’s TRERBEASER-_Z=ZF
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31 TZA=t+—BFEEERERZ
December 2020: FEERBREEREEEBZER
Expected loss rate Gross carrying amount Loss allowance
RHERE HREAE BERE
2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
it Syl —R_FF Wkl — TR Pkl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Nebeswn . ARBETT A Gen | ARBTE
Current (notpastdue)  ENER (W RBH) 0.78% 254% 57,126 5,668 (448) (144)
Upto3 months pastdue #1583 18 AR 7.73% 16.96% 4,960 336 (383) (57)
Jto6monthspastdue I3 E61E A 78.00% 60.71% 66 28 (51) (17)
6months to 1 year past due #1856 [ A 2 15 78.00% 72.73% 192 143 (150) (104)
Over 1 year past due wEEN E 78.00% 89.80% 342 98 (267) (88)
62,686 6,273 (1,299) (410)

Expected loss rates are estimated based on actual loss experience
over the past few years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period over
which the historical data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group's view of economic conditions over the expected
lives of the receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=F-_FF+ A =+—HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.
(b) Creditrisk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

M EREEE (8)
(b) {SRE ()
P& W AR (48)

AEEBIER S BRREES
-

2020 2019

—B-EF —ZE-hF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T ARETTT

At 1 January ms e H o H 410 560
Impairment losses recognised for the year N E#ER 2 BB E 18 936 -
Reversals [0l - (150)
Exchange differences bE =50 (47) N
At 31 December IRTr=F= = 1,299 410

The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts of
trade receivables contributed to the increase in the loss allowance
during 2020:

— origination of new trade receivables net of these settled
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of RMB1,006,000;
and

—  settlement made by trade receivables recognised as at 31

December 2019 resulted in an decrease in loss allowance of
RMB112,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

rRE BB R
FoTEL A=+ —HILFE

6. MBEMEIER(B)

Credit risk (Continued) (b) (SEAES (&)
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHEEAIRzeRMERE
All of the Group's financial assets at amortised cost are considered REBE B IEEHEK AR S5t
to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during BEZEERBRHEHEARE &
the year was therefore limited to 12-month expected losses. RERNTER < BERERN 1218 A
Instruments are considered to be low credit risk when they have a TEHAEE - T HEZAOXK H?’*
low of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its TABBRAENREHRNEBITHS
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. # fﬁimu%f@t‘f‘} E'J ZET AR
REFGREER
Financial assets at amortised cost include the Group's deposits R HAS R SREEREAR
and other receivables. KBS R H ALY -
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of financial RAEE - HHEEK AT R 2 € 8
assets at amortised cost during the year is as follows: BEBEBEREHNOT :
Other
Deposits receivables Total
®e H fth FE KK st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBTT
At 1 January 2019 RZZF—hF—H—H 42 32 74
Impairment loss/(reversal of RNEFZHR A
impairment loss) recognised B8, CRE R Ea )
for the year 5 () 4
At 31 December 2019 and =T e
1 January 2020 T=F=T—ER
ZEES 47 31 78
Impairment loss recognised NEEWR B EEE
for the year 143 3,733 3,876
Exchange differences ME =5 (8) (2) (10)
At 31 December 2020 e
== 182 3,762 3,944
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

6. MBAEKEIE (8)

(c) Liquidity risk () FRBESES
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected AEBBXRATHERE A RE
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient HzRBELEE  iMERAE
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and B 45 B 53R & REE DARE (S LR AR
longer term. EERIBNRBDESTE -
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash BREAEEFTESREBELEL
flows of the Group's non-derivative of financial liabilities is as RURREREEL BB ST
follows: i
The Group
rEE
Less than Between Between
Tyear 1and2years 2andS5 years Total
—FR —EME MERE @st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREET T AREET T AREET T AREET T
At 31 December 2020 Y e 2
e = H
Trade payables FERTBRER 2,505 - - 2,505
Accruals and other payables  FETE F Ko £ th FE (< 7X 25,540 - - 25,540
Lease liabilities HERRE 4,013 2,971 248 7,232
Bank loans RITER 8,159 - - 8,159
At 31 December 2019 NZE—NF
+=A=+—AH
Trade payables FETBRFR 1,590 - - 1,590
Accruals and other payables  FE&E F I E i & (< 3% 21,381 - - 21,381
Lease liabilities HERE 1451 709 - 2,160
Due to a director [N E SR 896 - - 896
Due to related parties FE ST RARE 5 708 5,984 - - 5,984
Bank loans RITER 9,255 - - 9,255
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

(d)

(e)

(f)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

Interest rate risk (d)

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank
balances. These balances bear interests at variable rates that vary
with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates at that date had been 25
basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have been
RMB70,000 lower/higher (2019: RMB73,000 lower/higher), arising
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income on bank
interest-bearing deposits (2019: bank interest-bearing deposits).

Other than the bank balances as mentioned above, the Group'’s
deposits at current accounts, fixed time deposits, other payables
(2019: due to a related party) and short-term bank loans bear
interest at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to fair
value interest rate risks.

Categories of financial instruments at 31 December: (e)

rRE BB R
FoTEL A=+ —HILFE

MEB R EE (8)

3
ANEEATEE F R ERRFR S ERTT
©EF  ZEEFRETERTRM
T FBFNEETE ©

Rmedmesesa s Bl o 5] 0
QEﬁTLH/TM%ﬂg% i
B AKFEE
%méﬁA%EhﬁQ/%MAE

¥ 70000 TT( =B —NF : md 2

IMAR®730007T) » EEHRE
BRAFER(CE—HLTF: 558

THER) 2 M B AE I, BT
5 o

B ERIRITRETFIN - AR 7R
BETH - TR - EbEN

F-NF: BN —2@AH
Iﬁ)&ﬁﬁﬂfﬁ B BIR B E A K
5 Hﬁ(;ﬁ%i"&fﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ 3

R+-RA=+—-HZ&MIAH
il

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Financial assets: ERMEE :
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1ZE SRS E 2 S RIEE 134,228 243,521
Financial liabilities: tREE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEHERAYRcemEaE 36,045 38816
Fair values H 2‘RE

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair values.

REBPRGATBARRTERARB Z
tREEMCHAGRAERELS
BARERE °

RIREEERARAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any
of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances
that caused the transfer.

(a) Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy:

Description

S

Recurring fair value measurement:
Investment properties — Commercial

PRC (note 20) (Ktat20)

BEEMDAENE
BREWE —PEBEE

[nEHE

ARNEETH2EEZERAER &
BFRPTHEEESKRKERAE
BXMHER - TXAREFEZHE
BERERSERTEMRAR/EREZ
2BERR=EERZ AR EERERHE
F-E28: AEEAIRAEAER
ZEREEXBERE
BmigzmE(CKER

=

% — % A2 4 8B
o BERABETEE
SATEREG L 28 -

BEXBBETAHRER
HZ 28 -

AEBZBRER=EERTHES
BERZEMHXBEREDHERZEAR
i -

(@) DAEEREBZHBEEH:

Fair value measurements as at
31 December using
level 3 hierarchy:
RtT=ZA=+—HBzAARE
AERAE=ER

2020 2019
—EZH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
57,800 57,000

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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7.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rRE BB R
FoTEL A=+ —HILFE

7. Q5{EFHER)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value b) REE=BRAAEHEZEE

based on level 3: HER .
Investment
Description properties
it REWH*
RMB'000
AR¥ETTT
At 1 January 2020 R—ZE_FTF—H—H 57,000
Total gains or losses recognised in profitor loss (#) B ER 2 WS sk B8 4E 58 (# 800
At 31 December 2020 g et Sesee e Bl 57,800
(#)  Include gains or losses for assets held atend of (#) BIERMEMKRAIFEEY
reporting period W e sk B8 800
At 1 January 2019 RZF—hF—H—A8 55,300
Total gains or losses recognised in profitor loss (#) M IERFER 2 Wk 145 1,200
At 31 December 2019 R-B- ATk et b 57,000
#)  Include gains or losses for assets held atend of (#) BIERMEEARMISEEZ
reporting period Wz sk 18 1,200
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including RIERRERZKNHSEEEE (R
those for assets held at end of reporting period are presented in RZENBRERRAFECEE)E
the face (2019: face) of the consolidated statement of profit or loss maR Eﬁﬁiﬁm:&iﬁqﬁlﬁﬁ%qj EE VA
and other comprehensive income. Z2I(=ZF—NF : BIZ2) -

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group () BRPEBEFFBEERFUARR
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair —EEF+BA=1+—HZAR
value measurements at 31 December 2020: EtEFRERGES ERSHZE

28l
The Group's chief financial officer (“CFO") is responsible for the fair AEBEEMBE(ERYR
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial BEEBEVKRBAMFEEEEGE
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The ZARBERE BREEZEAAE

CFO reports directly to the Board for these fair value
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the financial controller and the Board at least once

a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform the

valuations.

T%'Jr% BRMBEEERNESgE

WZEANEGE - MBHEEERE
%Qtiﬁ*}\—wﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁkr?@
BRER -

WFE—EBARENENS @ AKH

—ﬂﬁAﬁl\%,\ub\—Iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%Iﬁ
HEELR BEERET -

RIREEERARAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEIMTBIRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FFF+—H=+1—HIFE

7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7.
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 31 December 2020:
(Continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements

Investment properties —  Income capitalisation  Yield 49%-6%
Commercial PRC approach lignes (2019: 4%-6%)
RENE —EEE  WAERILE (ZZ-NF : 4%-6%)
Market rent Monthly office rental
msiE RMB42-43.05/50.m.

(2019: RMB41-42/sq.m)
RAZGARSETIA

AREOTE
AREB05T
(ZF-n%:

YTRARENTE

AR 427T)

Monthly car-park space
RMB156-260 /unit

(2019: RMB156-260/unit)

[FEfE ABf
ARB156TZ
ARB 20T
(Z2-NEF:BEf
ARB156TZ
ARE 2607
Financial assets at FVTOCI  Guideline public Discount for Lack of 158%
BAREHAZMEE  companymethod  Marketability (DLOM’) (2019:13%)
Wae eREE ERERRARAE  REZmERAM (ZE-NEF 13%)
e Wy
RERTE])

Smartac International Holdings Limited

[sEEE (R

(0 FAMTKEFRBEEEFUARE
—S_¥F+_B=+-H22%
[EstEFERGER ZREBZE
BEHE: (8

F=EAAEE

2020
SBoFF
RMB'000
ARET T
asset
&E
Higher of the yield, 57,800 57,000
lower of fair value
Wi
RAERED
Higher of the market
rent, higher of fair value
RSB

DAESEM

Higher of DLOM, lower of - -
fair value
HE METRILE

i AR ERD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

REVENUE 8.

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major
products or service line for the year is as follows:

A

AR
AEERIBZERARBEUSRAE
FEHZBASEMT :

2020
“ECEH
RMB’000
AR%T T
Revenue from contracts with customers A B R B 7 3R 45 2E Al
within the scope of IFRS 15 E15FEER
REEFEHZBA
Disaggregated by major service line BEERBENE
Sale of merchandises Bk 184,799 12,705
Commission income He A 5,889 10,390
Sales of hardware and software and SHERE M R B LA K
installation service 2 H R 285 1,740
Other IT support service HA & AR R R 651 962
Other service income E RIS UA 24 =
191,648 25,797

RIREEERARAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEIMTBIRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FFF+—H=+1—HIFE

8. REVENUE (Continued) 8. WA (&)
Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) WA (R)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over REER T EZEmRBGE LR
time and at a point in time in the following major products or service BERFRE M A R AR E S ER S R KR
lines and geographical regions: FIECILNE

2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

S & ees SR SR SR & SR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRT R ARRT R KRBT ARRTR ARET R ARRT R

Primary geographical markets TEHEH S

Hong kong Eh 146,116 - 1,944 343 - = 169 5 2% B 115 15] 343
PRC except Hong Kong HE(TaEEA) 28,168 10503 3,945 6967 25 1740 482 %) - & 32,880 0172
The S *E 10,165 20 - - - = - 5 - - 1065 20
Others £ty 350 = - = - - - 5 - 3 350 -
Revenue from external customers RESMIZE 2 A 184,799 12705 5,889 103% 25 1740 651 %) b} - 191,688 25797

Timing of revenue recognition B2 2B
Goodsand senices translered — AEEBHEEHER

atapointin time R 184,799 12705 - - 25 1740 - = - - 185084 14445
Seices transferred over e~ KBS BB R - - 5,889 1039 - - 651 %) % - 6,564 11352
Total 5t 184,799 12705 5,889 103% 25 1740 651 %) 2% - 191648 %797

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME 9. HfthgA
2020 2019
—EC-BFE —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBTFT
Bank interest income HITHBWA 1,179 2,714
Government grants* B #68 Bh * 1,390 702
Net foreign exchange gain HNGE Uy 2 F KR - 395
Gross rental income from investment properties & & ¥ % > & W A 4258 3,011 2,973
Property management fee and related income ¥ %%& 12 & R AER U A 1,917 1,867
Value added tax refund BERIRN 75 120
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE  BE &
plant and equipment o W - 5
Gain on de-registration of a subsidiary BE—FMW B A R s 11 =
Gain on early termination of a lease RERIEHEE 2 W 48 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B AR < W 3 -
Rent concession HeER 32 =
Others HAth 316 268
7,982 9,044
3 During the year, the Group recognised government grants of ; FA - AEBE 2019 M % 5 HAEH
approximately HK$768,000 (equivalent to RMB683,000) in respect of 8 B B SR KU 78 B 40 78 1 768,000 7T (4R

COVID-19 related subsidies, of which HK$754,000 (equivalent to

Z N N R #6830007T ) - H AP B

RMB670,000) relates to Employment Support Scheme provided by the 754,000 7¢ (FHE R A R ¥ 670,000 7T ) B2

Hong Kong government. The remaining government grants represented
government subsidy granted to enterprise, who had fulfilled certain
requirements such as engaging in research and development activities,
duly paid taxes in previous years, by the local government that the
subsidiaries operate and the use of IT to support its business.

fhaL -

BEBFRMEZ Rt 58160 -
ST BB A B & E et
BHBFRTAETHRE(PInRdE
FEDEMPFEY  KEAHRERE
AR EEER) 2 BERE Z BT

RIREEERARAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. FEPEH
The Group has three (2019: three) reportable segments as follows: AEEBEUT=ZE(ZZE—NF: =M@)
EFHE ¢
(i) Online to Offline ("020") - Management, operation and provision of market strategy of online and offline
commerce segment* operations

F T ([o20]) s &F BMEBRTERBZER - 2ERRMHEHRE

(i) Electronic payment solutions -  Provision of electronic payment solutions and related services
segment®
BFXNRT RSB RHUEFXTERIRA R XA R

(i)  Others® —  Provision of IT system development and support services
Hh o REE MBI R & I E RS

¢ The name of this segment was “e-commerce solutions segment” prior to # R-ZZE-_ZTFR ZoHA2E2BEE
2020. The name was changed as the Group considered it represents the FRABHEARATRD ] - ARAEER
business nature of this segment and its recent development more BEAE AL iﬁ{t%EZ“*EZ%V\EE
specifically. RERABE HNEHZEBELE

e

* The name of this segment was “integrated digital marketing solutions * N-_TE-TFER] ZHER Z%%ﬁ;ﬁj [ 43
segment” prior to 2020. The name was changed as the Group considered AETHREBAFTRS ] - ARAE
it represents the business nature of this segment more specifically. ERAHAE EEMAKRRZD I ER

ME - MEHZEBELER -

A The Group’s other reportable segment mainly represented 020 solutions 4 RIZE-FFH - AEBHEMEFHD
segment prior to 2020. The chief operating decision maker considered this I;za“é‘ O20fFRF D E - EELER
segment does not meet quantitative thresholds for determining a RERBZDBIATERIEEERRD
reportable segment. B 2P -

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer REE 2 2HDBERFEARE MM HE(

different products and services. They are managed separately because BrRMEBEL - AREEBTE

each business requires different technology and marketing strategies. [l Sl I 2 SH 3R S - UM E T 0 B HETT

Each of the above operating segments corresponds to related B U EREEDMEERIEEHED

subsidiaries engaging in the respective segment activities. BESZABMEARRA -

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as Ran gt R AR A B 7% R MY

those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. 4R E - - DEMER T ERERR

Segment profits or losses do not include corporate income and expenses ARSI AR REYMEZ AR ER

and fair value change of the investment properties held and related tax BLRERREYE  DHMEETRREDL

impact. Segment assets do not include corporate assets and investment XEERMBREME - DBEABETE
properties held. Segment liabilities do not include corporate liabilities REEBBEURBERAREME RN
and deferred tax liability relating to the investment properties. HAIE -

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+ _HA=+—HIFFZE

Information about reportable segments profit or

10. FHWEE (4B

(i) EBIVzAH - AERARE

loss, assets and liabilities: ¥l
Electronic payment
020 commerce segment solutions segment Others Total
020EHAH EEST) VVESE A @it
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
SEoRF ksl “SSEF Bkl —$-3E EeyEd "I-ST Wik
RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMBI000
IV Eol ARETT BNG Al ARETT BNGATE ARETT RNGdEvA ARETT
(Re-presented) (Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(B 25) (EH25) (B 25)
Year ended 31 December BET-A=t-BLEE
Revenue from external customers RENMIRFZHA 188,916 19672 1,950 344 782 200 191,648 57197
Segment (oss)/profi A8 (E8) /&7 (36,983) (#35%) (475) (1150) 1436 81 (36,022) (#384)
Interest revenue FlBUA ;3 64 - - 3 5 46 69
Interest expense flexi 735 53 7 06 459 478 1,201 597
Depreciation and amortisation FEREE 4,238 8062 454 1048 474 75 5,166 9825
Share of result of an associate El-FBENRLE - - - - 1,090 1063 1,090 1063
Income tax expense/(credit) FMERBR/(H5) 83 (8349 - - (51) (51) ky) (8:400)
(Allowance for)/reversal of lowance for ~ EMER 3% (B8 /BB R
trade receivables (923) {7) 8 (6] (21) 165 (936) 150
(Allowance for)/reversal of allowance REREGRYG (BE) /B
for deposits and other receivables bidn (3,585) (17) M) 20 (199) () (3,795) (@]
Impairment loss on goodwil BEHEFR - 11451 - = - L o 11451
Reversal of impairment loss on other iRzt
receivables HEERED 18 19 - - - - 18 19
Allowance for inventories HERE 8,356 1718 - = - = 8,356 1718
Impairment loss on non-current assets FRBEERERR 1,550 26962 - - - - 1,550 2692
Additions to segment non-currentassets  AEIHREAERE 13,384 381 3 4l 125 38 13512 3910
At 31 December Rt=A=1-A
Segment assets PHEE 157,647 54753 2,570 9395 15,226 14624 175,443 78,772
Segment labilties e (21,150) (14747) (1,703) (3938 (11,644) (12449 (34497) (31,134
Investment n an associate* PN TRE! - - - E 5,024 393 5,024 3934
# The investment in an associate is classified under others segment . R—EBERTIREESERE

as the management considered the business that the associate
engaged was related to the business of that segment.

BARET  RERERERR
AR N RN T 2 R EZ D B
ZEGAR

BB RARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_-F &

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segments: (i)

Revenue and profit or loss:

S e (T

10. FHEE (4H)
SR IHR -
N =F i

2020 2019
b g 35 —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETFIT
Revenue WA
Consolidated revenue RE WA 191,648 25,797
Profit or loss B
Total loss of reportable segments WD EEELTE (36,022) (43,824)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLESHE
Fair value gain on investment properties REME 2 A ERE 800 1,200
Deferred tax relating to fair value gain on BAEKEMELAL BN
investment properties ZIRIET IR (200) (300)
Unallocated head office and corporate AP ERERENTEER
expenses (21,528) (9,476)
Consolidated loss for the year AKEEIREEE (56,950) (52,400
Assets and liabilities: EEHEE:
2020 2019
b g 35 —ZT-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETF T
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments EWMOHREE 175,443 78,772
Unallocated amounts: RNOBLESHE
Investment properties KEME 57,800 57,000
Unallocated head office and corporate ROTBMBERDEEE
assets 22,276 186,601
Consolidated total assets IRABEE 255,519 322433
Liabilities afE
Total liabilities of reportable segments EWMHFRAE 34,497 31,134
Unallocated amounts: KOS
Deferred tax liabilities relating to BAREYEZEEHIBEEE
investment properties 12,683 12,483
Unallocated head office and corporate AOBEEREENDEBE
liabilities 8,734 10,400
Consolidated total liabilities REREE 55,914 54,017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+ _HA=+—HIFFZE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

11.

(iii)

(iv)

Geographical information:

The Group's revenue from external customers by location of
operations was disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The majority of the Group’s non-current assets are located in the
PRC. Accordingly, no geographical analysis is presented.

Revenue from major customers:

Customer A BEA
Customer B ZFEB

10. FEPEFE (48)
(iii) SHIEEEE :
REERBINBER ZWA (IRE
EEE D) R A ISR MIFES
W -

AEBZIFRBEERNIBOMNRF
o AUt - BEZFHIEDAT o

(ivv REEEERZHBA:

2020 2019
—EZH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
23,053 =
20,430 -

Each of the major customers represents a single external customer
whose sale transaction is generated from 020 commerce
segment of the Group.

FINANCE COSTS

BEEXERPRIHERIREAEH
Q0N B2 E—IMEES -

11. BERE

2020 2019
S5d T
RMB’000 RMB'000
CLEEA ARETE

Interest expenses on lease liabilities (note21)  FEB G B H (Mt 21) 742 19
Interest expenses on bank loans RITEFRA B H 459 478
1,201 597

BRRREERAERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12. FRISIRER, (K%)
Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows: EREEERZAEHET
2020 2019
—E-TF —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AR¥ETTT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax RERFIIE — BAFEH
Provision for the year FNEE 83 =
Deferred tax (note 37) RAERRIE (BYaE 37)
Provision for the year FANEE 149 (8,100)
Income tax expense/(credit) FriSfigEm, (%) 232 (8,100)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax
in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity established in Hong Kong will be charged
at 8.25%, and profits above that amount will be subject to the tax rate of
16.5%.

PRC EIT has been provided at a rate of 25% (2019:25%).

No provision for PRC EIT has been made in the consolidated financial
statements since certain subsidiaries of the Group have sufficient tax loss
brought forward to set off against the assessable profit for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group’s
subsidiaries operate, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practices in respect thereof.

One of the Group's subsidiaries operating in Suzhou, the PRC, was
recognised as an advance technology enterprise (/= 1 £ 17 1 %) in
2019 and was entitled to enjoy an income tax concession at preferential
rate of 15% effective from 1 January 2019. In order to enjoy the
preferential rate of 15%, the subsidiary is required to apply for renewal
every three years from first year of approval.

Smartac International Holdings Limited

RERSHENEBRELZES ((XBE
ZREDZRURRD  AEBEBAR
MASEHEMNABRZES ZEMNME
i o

ENGSHMEGT REBRIZAE
REBERZBRHE2BETAENBR
825% Z MR - MBBZ S 2 F
AR 16.5% 2 Tt RN

REMEMBREIR25% (T —14F
25%) Z TR TR B o

HE_ZT-ZFR-_ZFT—NLF+=A
=+t—HIEFE ARAEERSETHE
NEIA 7 BB E 1 o] BRI S e ER
Faf - MW ERGEBHREGETE
EMSTHAT IR -

NS 2 B E A b 15 AT EE A R SR A A
RIEETHBERAREEMERIEZEER
ZEBREBEN 2B REM - REE
RBITHRFFER A

AEBES —HRPEHMNEEEFZ
MEBARNR-_ZE-NFEIT RS
mieEx ¥ -_FT—-NAF—HF—HEAR
BER1S%FAEHERRE - BEH15%
BEME  ZMBAREEERIKE
FERAS=FHRFEEAMER -

2020 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+ _HA=+—HIFFZE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

12.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense/(credit) and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as follows:

FR{SIRER. (%) (&)

FISTEM, (K% ) SRR T A &5 18 R A
FREERMAEHM R ZERERNOT

2020 2019

“ECEH —TNEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT

Loss before tax FRELRIES IR (56,718) (60,500
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% (2019: 25%) BRPBREMSHE 25%

(ZZE—NF : 25%):TE 2 HE (14,179) (15,125)

Tax effect of income that is not taxable BEZRHRBAZ RIS E (1,252) (843)

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible  NEI B X H 7 B IS 2 & 7,255 5679
Tax effect of temporary differences and RERE R EE R IEEGE

tax losses not recognised 2B E 6,152 1,489

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not &) A SR AR R T IHE 18

previously recognised BB (300) (317)

Tax effect of tax concession MIBEEIMETE (83) (8)

Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B R R TR R Z Tz £ 2,639 1,025

Income tax expense/(credit) FI3tigm,(Ee) 232 (8,100)

BB RARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
I EMERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. AEERBHR
The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the AEEAFEEBEDNKR(GTA) T
following: IR
2020 2019
—ECEF —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Allowance for inventories * FERE 8,356 1,718
Amortisation on intangible assets * A 116 6,783
Auditor’s remuneration * ZEEN S *
— Audit services — ZHRT
— Current year e BT 1,520 1,128
— Other services — E AR 293 261
1,813 1,389
Bad debts written-off * (S 14 -
Cost of inventories sold TFEHEERKA 167,277 9,251
Depreciation on property, M - WERBEHTE
plant and equipment * 1,821 1,448
Depreciation on right-of-use assets * FREEEITE" 3,250 1,594
5,071 3,042
Direct operating expenses of investment AEARSWRAZ
properties that generate rental income * REMEERKEER" 657 612
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) # SNEEIE,(Yrzs) sFaa 524 (395)
Impairment loss on property, plant M - WE REERERE
and equipment * 1,550 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, LEME - BEK
plant and equipment * wtE BB (Was) > 8 (5)
Written-off of inventories * MiEFE 19 -
Written-off of property, plant and equipment *  #iS&¥% ~ M= LR E* 115 -

* Included in other operating expenses.
d Included in administrative expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

e MR RMEE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 14. BEIENER
2020 2019
—ECoEE —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) B IAA(BIEESME)

— Salaries, bonus and allowance — & - LA NERL 32,254 21,924
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — RKERFTE = 499 1,766
— Severance payment —BHE 81 58
32,834 23,748

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year included
two (2019: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2019: three) individuals are set out

AEEAFEREESHFMALEER
#2(ZE-NF:MB)EF EBzC
RiZEMBERERME 15D AR
R-HEB=R(—F-AF: =) AT

below: ZM&mT :
2020 2019
—ECoEE —T—hfF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBFIT
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 2,920 2,808
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKE R B 32 86
2,952 2,804
The emoluments fell within the following band: ESAERInT
Number of individuals
A
2020 2019
—EZH —E-NF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to Nil to VEMS T T B 1,000,000 7T (FEE
RMB889,000 (2019: Nil to RMB882,000)) RAREZITE AR 8389,0007T
(=l = NEeey e
AR #882,0007T)) 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (equivalentto 7% 1,000,001 7T 2 7 % 1,500,000 7T
RMB889,001 to RMB1,333,000 (FEER AR ¥ 889,001 TR
(2019: RMB882,001 to RMB1,322,000)) AR 13230007 (== c=
AR#882001 TE
ANR#13220007T)) 2 )

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out below as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

RAFE  AEBEYEINHENTX
BEEREMNAERSHFMALZR
B ARSI EFMBLRMBAEE
2 2R - IERBEREE 2 HfE

BB RARAR
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I EMERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=F-_FF+ A =+—HIFFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15. EREARELR
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EHME
The remuneration of each director is set out below: ZEF 2 HEM T

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-B-SF+t-AZ+-BLEE

Retirement
benefit
Salariesand Discretionary scheme
allowances bonus contributions Total
BIRER
e HeRER META B @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥Trn AR¥Trn AR¥®Tr AR%Tx
Name of director EEEB
Executive director HTES
Mr. Ho Chi Kin OE e
(resigned on 23 April 2021) (R=E=—4
MA=+=HEME) - 2,578 267 16 2,861
Mr. Yang Xin Min (re-designated  #5¥TR L4
from non-executive director (R=B=FHF
on 17 December 2020) +ZA+tHfH
FRITESRE) - 1,052 89 - 1,14
- 3,630 356 16 4,002
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
directors
Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary HRTHL 267 - - - 267
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael BRELE 267 - - - 267
Mr. Peng Bobo URBEAE 212 = - - 212
Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung Eghist
(resigned on 29 April 2021) (M=—ZT=——%F
MAZ+NBEHE) 267 - - - 267
Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward HERLE
(resigned on 29 April 2021) (RZZT=——%
mA-+/1BET) 267 - - - 267
1,280 - - - 1,280
Total for 2020 RZEZTFEE 1,280 3,630 356 16 5,282
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A MIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15. ERwEAIBRER (45)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEME(EE)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HECT-NFT-A=t-HLEFE

Retirement
benefit
Salariesand  Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonus  contributions Total
RIRAEA
we  HekEE Wi FTEIfH K “@at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARE®ETT AR®TT AR%ET
Name of director EEER
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yang Xin Min (re-designated 53T R L4
as a non-executive director (R=Z—-NL%F
on 16 December 2019) +=A+/~BHRE
RIFRTEE) - 1413 881 - 229
Mr. Yang Zhen (resigned on BELE
16 December 2019) (M=ZFE—NF
TZAT/RBEHE) - 842 882 39 1763
Mr.Ho ChiKin (appointedon ]/ B(E 4L 4
16 December 2019) (RZZE—h&F
+ZATAREZE) - 131 - 1 132
- 2,386 1,763 40 4,189
Independent non-executive B EHTES
directors
Dr. Cheng Faat Ting Gary HETEL 23 2 B - 225
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael BRELAE 23 2 - - 225
Mr. Peng Bobo PRREE 181 2 " - 183
Mr. Tsui Francis King Chung EYHhRE
(appointed on (RZZ-NF
16 December 2019) TZ A+ BEZHE) 12 - = - 12
Mr. Tang Yat Ming Edward HARALE
(appointed on (T
16 December 2019) T At EREE) 12 - - - 12
651 6 - - 657
Total for 2019 RZZ-NFet 651 2392 1,763 40 4,846
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any FRN - FBITHRABREMNESH
emoluments during the year (2019: Nil). ER G WL S (= —F
) o

BB RARAR
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company and the director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

16. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLAN

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group'’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries and
wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of contribution of
HKS$1,500 per employee and vest fully with employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme (the “Scheme”) operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
wages to the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired employees of these
subsidiaries. The only obligation of this subsidiary with respect to the
central pension scheme is to meet the required contributions under the
Scheme.

The Group's total contributions to these schemes charged to the profit
or loss during the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
RMB499,000 (2019: RMB1,766,000) representing contributions paid and
payable by the Group to the schemes at the appropriate rates set by the
local government where the subsidiaries operate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

17. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

18. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of RMB49,408,000 (2019: RMB37,926,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,635,970,924 (2019: 5,635,970,924) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 is presented as the Company had no potential ordinary
shares outstanding.

17. HQE

rRE BB R
FoTEL A=+ —HILFE

= o Elﬂzifx_/)ﬁﬁffﬂﬁﬁ@ :iﬁ L
F )

18. W|ARSHA

(a)

(b)

SREXEHGHE
RARRRELSRERNGEIR
BARRKREEBEAFEBEBAR
#5 49,408,000 L (Z B — N&F - /\E
#537,926,0007C) R FAE EHITE B
% 2 g 71988 5,635,970,924 f% (_
T — N4 1 5635970924 %) 5t &E o

ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
BE_F_ZTHER- 71¢+_
A :—I—— Sl EEE’\\$
BRTEIINZEEEBE E&Iﬁ
2 EREEER -

RIREEERARAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. Y15 - BER®GA

Buildings Office
and leasehold equipment Motor
improvement and fixtures vehicles Total
BFR WAZE
HEBH REBEKE HE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Cost B
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NE—H—H 8,130 4632 2,383 15,145
Additions NE 177 185 1,103 1,465
Disposals HeE - (44) - (44)
Exchange differences BN =% 4 1 g 15
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 EA:fFE—ﬂ@‘l‘ = T
—F-F5-H—H 8,311 4,784 3,486 16,581
Additions NE 2,823 1,479 1,020 5,322
Transfer from construction in progress BERT2ER 320 - - 320
Disposals & - (265) = (265)
Write-off WA (130) (2,347) - (2,477)
Exchange differences PEXE5 (142) (63) (38) (243)
At31 December 2020 S S e el 11,182 3,588 4,468 19,238
Accumulated depreciation 2 ERRE
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—HA—H 2,587 3,955 1543 8,085
Charge for the year FRALH 733 228 487 1448
Disposals e - (41) - (41)
Exchange differences BN ER 3 9 - 12
At31 December 2019and 1January 2020 R=ZZE—NF+-A=+—HK
—Z-Z§-H-H 3,323 4,151 2,030 9,504
Charge for the year FRLH 968 368 485 1,821
Disposals & - (252) - (252)
Write-off g (123) (2,239) = (2,362)
Impairment loss REEE 1,232 318 = 1,550
Exchange differences BEHESE (83) (33) 3) (119)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZF+-F=+—H 5,317 2,313 2,512 10,142
Carrying amount HREE
At 31 December 2020 RIE_TF+-_A=t—-H 5,865 1,275 1,956 9,096
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=1—H 4,988 633 1,456 7077
Notes: Kizt -

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the Group's property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans of RMB8,000,000 (2019:
RMB9,000,000) (note 35) amounted to RMB4,542,000 (2019: RMB4,812,000).
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RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

During the year, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU
under 020 commerce segment due to unsatisfactory performance and
as a result recognised impairment loss of RMB1,550,000 in respect of
leasehold improvement and office equipment and fixtures attributable
to that CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined on the basis
of its value in use using discounted cash flow method. The key
assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and
turnover during the period. The Group estimates discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. The growth rate is based on long-term average
economic growth rate of the geographical area in which the businesses
of the CGU operates. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five years with
the residual period using the growth rate of 0%. This rate does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 8.65%.

19. W% - BERRRE (8)

FRN - ARKRBRE  AEEF{H020
BELBTREELEEM 2T KE S
AN BB ELSEMEGLL
THEBIAR D ERMEREBERERR
EEE AR 1,5500007T °

ReELEMNA RO SRIRERE
REERAMARSREELET - BiR
RERBEAZEBEBRRNDERAANZRR
R-RBEEXNBEENXREXEE
ﬁ% AEEGFARRESELENZ
E¥REREERRZREMSN G
BEBRE - ERXTDREBEBSELEME
RS R 2 RETFHEEIE R X
HiL E”E”%?’F'JT&M%%ETJ%E’\ﬂﬁ
BRI kTSR REHRTE
AEERECFASREER  DHREAK
EFRERRAEFRFBHENIERE
B0% 2 RO ETAE - ZIEEETHE
BERMSNFHRBERE -

TEORIER & )R = FTE A A AL = 5 8.65% ©

RIREEERARAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out the investment properties under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to five years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond
initial period held by lessees only.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the
end of lease term.

20.

REME
AEBRBEEEEHAREDE K
AmftEe - BENSAE—RA—E
A ERBEARBENSEBEES
E SRR -

ERERHT  BRMEREHIUEE
ERZHERNEERNE KA AKEY
BAZINERR HESHATEERE
BERE/ZEEARERTEREE
VIR BIZHE -

2020 2019
—B-BF —T-hfF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBT T

At 1 January W—RA—H 57,000 55,800
Fair value gain A EkE 800 1,200
At 31 December INr= B =1 57,800 57,000

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2020
and 2019 was valued on income capitalisation approach by taking into
account the net rental income of the existing lease and achievable in the
existing market with due allowance for the reversionary income potential
of the lease. The valuation was performed by Graval Consulting Limited
in 2020 while valuation was performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited in 2019. Both parties were independent firms of chartered
surveyors.

There was no change in the valuation approach adopted by the two
surveyors for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. The fair
value of the Group’s investment properties is within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy.

At 31 December 2020, the investment properties were pledged as
security for the Group's bank loans (note 35).

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS ERAEARE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HELH HEME wast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
At 1 January 2019 RZZFE—h&F—H—H 2,062 9,285 4,297
Additions NE = 1,382 1,362
Depreciation e (56) (1,538) (1,594)
Exchange differences E 5 =% - 1 11
At 31 December 2019 and ISl
1 January 2020 —1—_)5]_-1— B
i O e B e 2,006 2,090 4,096
Additions NE - 8,231 8,231
Depreciation e (56) (3,194) (3,250)
Gain on early termination of a lease IR FR4IHFEE 7 W - (726) (726)
Exchange differences b 5, = =B - (215) (215)
At 31 December 2020 MNZE_TF
= He e 1,950 6,186 8,136

Lease liabilities of RMB6,405,000 (2019: RMB2,005,000) are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of RMB6,186,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB2,090,000). The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

R-_ZE_ZT&Et+_H=+—H: K HEE=
BAR®G6405000T(ZF—NF : AR
¥ 2,005,000 T ) BEi G REFEAEEE AR
GlEEoEl = =5 — 1 %20 A R

2,090,000 7C) —RIFER ° BR BB AR A
HEEE 7 EEEDRI HERETH

MEMRZL - HEEETSRIEEERE
R o
2020 2019
—ECERFE —T-hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBTT
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEERE 3,250 1,594
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEMNEXH GEAMBKAE)
(included in finance costs) (note 11) (Htati1) 742 119
Expenses relating to short-term lease BRESEES N
(included in selling expenses and GFASHER X MTERAY)
administrative expenses) 1,079 716
COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions received 2 U EX 2019 T ik & 2 75 4 A
(note 9) HEER (KZE9) 32 -

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 41(b).

HERSREBREFIFENRMEE41(b)

As disclosed in note 3(a), the Group has early adopted the Amendments SRANBTRE 3@) FTIREE - AEE B IR F R
to IFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions, and applied the practical BB B IS R 5 ZE RN 1697 215 5T 20198

expedient introduced by the Amendments to all eligible rent
concessions received by the Group during the period.

AEEREEES RS UBREER
SIAZAITTREEARBRASERH
AR ZFrEaEREERER °
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases offices and land for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of one to three years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns an office building located in the PRC. The
Group is the registered owner of this property interest, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the land interest. The leasehold land components of this owned
property is presented separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use
assets related to leasehold lands of RMB1,950,000 (2019: RMB2,006,000)
were pledged as security for the Group's bank loans (note 35).
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FEMBHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

22. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 22, EEIE
RMB'000
ARETTT
Cost AR
At 1 January 2019 R== Il 5 H 977
Additions NE 320
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 BT e e B e
k—ZTo=4 B 1,297
Transfer out to property, plant and equipment EYE - WE MR EEE (320)
Write-off B 6] (977)
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZEF+-H=+—H -
Accumulated impairment Z5HRE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R=—E—NF—H—H ZZE—N&F
T A= ElEe ?fzéi—ﬂ—El (977)
Release upon write-off B S PR AR B 977
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE—ESa=H =pul" -
Carrying amount BRMEE
At 31 December 2020 A R e e e ] -
At 31 December 2019 R NEa = =g B 320
The Group's construction in progress as at 31 December 2019 comprised INGE BN =T e Bl
costs incurred on computer hardware, machinery, equipment pending Eglﬁ p_ﬁﬁﬁgzﬂz TS HE (-
installation and leasehold improvement of an office in the PRC. HEE—EARTERNEAZTEE
ﬂ*ﬁﬁﬁ&iﬁkﬂi

IRERE BT R AR A A
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FFF+—H=+1—HIFE

23. GOODWILL 23. HE

Cost 2%
At 1 January 2019, el = S
31 December 2019, =EE ks
1 January 2020 and e Hi= ol F
31 December 2020 —E-TF—F—H
rZZE-FF
T=A=ETr—E 59,883 56,093 1,246 117,222
Accumulated impairment losses Z 31 B &8
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-hF—H—H 48,432 56,093 1,246 105,771
Impairment loss BB EE 11,451 = - 11,451
At 31 December 2019, RZZE—NF
1 January 2020 and +=—A=+—8"
31 December 2020 —E-EF—-A—H
—E_THF
+=—A=+—8H 59,883 56,093 1,246 117,222
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FF
+ZA=+— - - - -
At 31 December 2019 NZZE—NF
—A=+— - - - -
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, MNEBRSHFFWE B2 R INER S
to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business ETBE R S EREREMHZIREELE
combination. B o
* The name of segment changed from e-commerce solutions segment to * EW DEETEERETRGSERASR
020 commerce segment during the year. DI A 020 TG EF ©
# 020 solutions segment was included in others segment during the year. # FR - QQ0FRFED R WA E A

8P °
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RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

23. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group acquired 51% of the equity interest in LCE Group in 2017. The
goodwill arising from the acquisition is wholly allocated to CGU of 020
commerce operations.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined on the basis of
its value in use calculations using discounted cash flow method. The key
assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those regarding the
discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rate is based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area in which the
business of the CGU operates. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are
based on past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five years with the
residual period using the growth rate of 3% in 2019. This rate did not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets. The
pre-tax rates used to discount the forecast cash flows was 22.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The amount was fully impaired in 2019.

Before impairment testing conducted in 2019, the carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to CGU of 020 commerce operations was
RMB11,451,000. This CGU of 020 commerce operations did not perform as
expected because of:

(i) the decrease in commission rate offered by brand partners due to
the change of e-commerce channel;

(ii) some brand partners turndown the engagement with the LCE
Group due to the economic uncertainty in local market; and

23. HE (&)

izt -

(@)

RZZT—+tF  AEBEUWHELCE Group
Z51%RRHE c ZWEFELERNEZH Y
BEZE OO0 B EEIRCEEBN ©

ReEEBMHATKE SRR E
REERBUERREREEETE - BR
RERBEZEERMRIERNZ AR
X -BEXRREENERZ2XRE
B AREIXBRBATL R EETRER
K BERHAIL R RRIRSEEEQ
2 B W RHE K E R 2 R TS AT
fly - MERRTRBR & BE LB EBHL
BRER 2 & BP9 QI8 & K Ef
B REENEREXBDERBEE
I iR RERETE

AEERRESRETED  HREL
EERBRARAFLRIGHEHN -2
—NEBRE R A3% 2 M HRAIETEE -
ZIERETEBRAE BTSN F R
EX -BE_ZT—NFE+-_A=1+—H
LEFE - AR S REFMFEARBRTIAT
BEIR R 5225% c 22BN T —N&F
EEURE -

K- hFETRESA - PEEE
OB EERSELEMNZBHEZR
HE A A R 11,451,000 7T © 0207 75
SEEGELBEMRIARITES - T3k

B

) FAETERESHRED N
BAEBHEHRIASBRET

f
(i) ERMTHFELET ENTRE

EE s TmEEERHEER
ICEEE 228 : Kk

RIREEERARAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

23. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(Continued)

(i) certain brand partners did not renew their agency agreements with
the LCE Group due to the poor sales performance from the
e-commerce platform management by the LCE Group.

Accordingly, the Group had revised its cash flow forecasts for this
CGU. The recoverable amount of the CGU had been substantially
reduced to zero in 2019. Therefore, impairment losses of
RMB11,451,000 and RMB26,962,000 were recognised on goodwill
and non-current assets (note 24) in profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2019. The situation in 2020 has still not yet been
improved although COVID-19 pandemic did not bring much
impact on the industry it operated. Hence, the recoverable amount
of the CGU was still below the carrying amount of the assets
belong. No reversal of impairment on non-current assets was
required in 2020.

The Group acquired 51% of the equity interest in Virtual City Limited (“VCL")
in 2013. The goodwill arising from the acquisition is allocated to CGU of
software development and CGU of hardware installation respectively
under the others segment. Due to the decrease in customers’ demand was
attributable to the keen competition in the market, the PRC's economic
downturn as well as technology obsolescence threatened the revenue
generated from the CGU of software development, the amount had been
fully impaired since 2017. The situation has still not yet been improved
since 2018. Hence, the recoverable amount of the CGU of software
development was still below the carrying amount of the assets belong. No
reversal of impairment on software development cost was required in
2020.

Smartac International Holdings Limited

23. HE (&)
s - ()

(@)

(4&

(i) HICEEEER ZEFRKF
BZHERARE  WETME
EEBHITEEICEERESER
Bt o

Bt AEBETERERESE
B 7RSRETRA - RZF
—NEF - ReEABRM BRI
SEARBET - At - REE
s o= = —HIFF
EZBERTHEERIERDEE
(24 ERBEBBBARE
11,451,0007C & A R ¥ 26,962,000
T BE2019EMRBETHREBL
REELEZTEELEEAY
2 W -_TFZERDERK
Z At BeELEBEM 2R
BeBNEREEMBREESE
BAZEAE WRZZTZZTF
BERLIEREEEZRIE -

ANEE R =T — = F U B virtual City
Limited ([VCL]) Z 51% A% 4 o 3% U2 B8 P
EEXRESRDREEEMSD E N EFH
BEREGTENRERSESEMN - &
REFBERTHRIVER TS HRIES
AP B A SR I B 4B B B R 1 B
BeEEEMMEEZRA  ZEHEE
B-Z—tFREERE - BABRLA
2 N\FRINKRENRE - Bt - 8]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IFEMIEERRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZT -_FTF _—HA=+—HILFZ

24. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 24. BEEE
Software
development Customer Computer
costs relationship Software  Trademark Total
HBAERAR EF% B s 5L st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ETT AR%®ETt AR%®Tr AR%Tn
(note (a) (note (b)) (note (c)) (note (d))
(Hix @) (B ®) (Hi7£ (@) (HE (@)
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NE—H—H 55,752 40,076 90 - 95918
Additions NE = = 283 460 743
At 31 December 2019 and RZE—-NF
1 January 2020 TEAST—ER
“2-%%—-R—H 55,752 40,076 373 460 96,661
Additions NE - - 90 - 90
At 31 December 2020 RZZZT
+=A=+—*H 55,752 40,076 463 460 96,751

Accumulated amortisationand ~ B EERREFE

impairment losses

At 1 January 2019 RZE—NE—A—H 55,752 6,679 26 - 62457
Amortisation for the year FRBEH - 6,679 77 27 6,783
Impairment loss (note 23()) WEEE (M7 230) = 26,718 244 - 26962
At 31 December 2019 and R-E—NE
1 January 2020 +-A=+-Hk

—£-T5-R—H 55,752 40,076 347 27 96,202
Amortisation for the year FREH - - 63 53 116
At 31 December 2020 RZE-_TF

T=E=T—F 55,752 40,076 410 80 96,318
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZTF

== - - 53 380 433
At 31 December 2019 N sE

T=E=1T—F - - 26 433 459

IREE TR BIRAE]
2020 FEHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

24.

25.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Software development costs represent the self-developed software for
sales and are amortised over the estimated useful life of 5 years. Software
development costs belong to the CGU of software development under
others segment, details of the impairment testing are set out in note 23(b).

Customer relationship represents the customer base and other business
relationships built up in 020 commerce operations and is amortised over
the estimated useful life of 6 years. Customer relationship belongs to the
CGU of 020 commerce operations, details of impairment testing are set
out in note 23(a).

Computer software represents software acquired from third party and is
amortised over the useful life of 5 years.

Trademark represents trademark acquired from a third party and is
amortised over the useful life of 9 years.

24.

(@)

@,

g

mEAEE (@)
At -

BB ATEE TREUHHE ZH
o XRSFEFFFARFHAEE - K
HHRERANBEMD B TRARAE 2R
SEABM - HRENAFBERNM T
23(b) °

BREMEFEETRFERREO0RISEE
BUHMEBBE  YReFEFT
RSN ERFBEBO0EKE
ERSEAEN  HREIAEBRR
B 5T 23(@a) ©

BHBMEAFE=TBAZHMS - TR
SERAFHNEH -

BIREREZ MG ZEE  YNoF

A RFHAEE -

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Issued capital/
establishment registered
Name of subsidiary and operation capital
FMRL
RS 3 B TRE,
il NG 844 HEMEAR
Virtual City Limited BV US$11,000
HERUHS E£11,0007T
Smartac Group Limited HK HK$14,450,001
BREEREERRA EE 114,450,001 7T
Smartac International Limited HK HKS1
RS EERARA B BT
Smartac Asia Limited HK HKS$1,000
BEEREMNERD EE A #1,0007T
Smartac Intelligent Systems Macau Limited ~ Macau MOP100,000
BEER AR ORPT) BRAA] B JEPIEE 100,000 7T

Smartac International Holdings Limited

R-ZE_ZF+_A=+—HZWBR
BN
Percentage of
ownership interest Principal activities
FEREER LA TREHR
Direct Indirect
B B3
5545% - Investment holding
REZR
- 100%  Investment holding
REER
- 100%  Investment holding
REZR
- 100%  Inactive
ENER
- 100%  Inactive
BrRR

25. RBABTZRE

2020 Annual Report



Name of subsidiary

WEAREMR

Korea Accelerator Incorporated

Smartac China Limited

BREETERRAT

BERAEE SRR &M BRAR"
(PCS Carnegie Technology
(Suzhou) Ltd.)*

BN BBE SRR BR AR

(Smartac Solutions (Suzhou) Ltd.)*

HMEEZDRRBRARL A"
(ShopperConnect (Suzhou) Limited)*

Tosun Limited

BEARAH

Cosmartec Limited

RTERRMARAH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Issued capital/
establishment registered
and operation capital
MR

B 2 BRITRE
KA &R
Korea KRW500,000,000
Er3E) 500,000,000
HK HK$15,612,500
5 7B 15,612,500 70
The PRC US$3,310,000
H %43,3100007C
The PRC RMB34,800,000
H AR ¥ 34800000 7T
The PRC RMB2,000,000
H AR 2,0000007C
BVI Uss1
RBEZHS =D
HK HK$30,000,000
BB 758 30,000,000 7T

RS MBRRMEE

F-FE A=+ —AULEE

25. RBATZRE ()

Percentage of
ownership interest Principal activities
BRRESZLA TEXK
Direct Indirect
B &
- 100%  Inactive
ENER
- 100%  Investment holding
REER
- 100%  Investment holding
REEK
- 9727%  Software development and
[T support services
B R AR
XERR%
- 85%  Software development and
[T support services
Y HERE AR
XER%
100% - Investment holding
RE®
- 100%  Investment holding and

provision of electronic
payment related services

REZBRRRHEET XN
18R RS

RIEEREERER LA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREMR

LEBMAREREARAR

(Shanghai Jianerxiu Network
Technology Co, Limited) *

HERAGRENBRARRA

(Shanghai Shijiexian Network
Technology Co, Limited) #

Haihai Limited (formerly known as
Haihai Travel Cloud Limited) (note (b))

Pers AR A (RIRERE IS IR E
ARAR) (A b))

Select Sky Limited
ERBERAF

EFEBRR(ER) BRAR
(Solomedia (Yixing) Limited)*

Great Sino Technology Development
Limited ('"GSTD")
EUMBRERARLA ([EH])

HFHBRR (LB BRAR"
(Solomedia Digital (Shanghai) Limited)*

Smartac International Holdings Limited

Place of

incorporation/ Issued capital/
establishment registered
and operation capital
MR

B3 B BRITRE
RikEi HMER
The PRC RMB20,000,000
H AR 20,000,000 7T
The PRC RMB10,000,000
H AR %10,000,0007T
HK HK$21,400,000
s 785 21,400,000 7T
HK HK$50,000,000
s 8% 50,000,000 7T
The PRC HK$50,000,000
H 550,000,000 7T
HK HK$240,000,000
s B 240,000,000 7T
The PRC HK$240,000,000
H K 240,000,000 7T

Percentage of
ownership interest
BRRESZLA

Direct Indirect

B B3
- 100%
= 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

25. RBATZRE ()

Principal activities

FEEHR

Management, operation and
provision of market
strategy of online shops
and e-commerce
platforms

BrEHREFER
TangR 2ER
REEHRE

Trading of goods

HEEm

Provision of electronic
payment solutions and
services

RUEEFINBRARK
k%

Investment holding
REZRK

Trading of goods

HEEM

Investment holding
REER

Trading of goods

HERm
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZT -_FTF _—HA=+—HILFZ

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREMR

HESTREERARRA"
(Yixing Solomedia Advertising
Media Limited)*

Fame Top Corporation Limited

ZRIBERAF

Fame Top US Inc.

Winning Grace Limited

ERARAT

Smartac Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Cosmos Base Technology Limited)

Smartac Holdings Limited

(AEBEEMRARAR)

Hihi Beauty Limited

LCE Group Limited

LCE HK Limited

LBEAEERMARARE"
(Shanghai Shouhong Information
Technology Limited)*

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FMRIL

R L3t 2
RAQE

The PRC
i

HK
&R

The US
5
HK

B0

B0

HK
B

BVI
RBEZES

HK
B

The PRC
H

Issued capital/
registered
capital

BRTRE/
HMER

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007T

HK$10,000
7B#10,000 7T

US$1,000,000
%4 1,000,0007T

HK$10,000
E#10,000 7T

HKS1
BT

HKS1
BT

US$10,000
%4 10,0007T

HK$10,000
B 10,000 7T

RMBS5,000,000
AR 5,0000007T

25. RBATZRE ()

Percentage of
ownership interest
BRRESZLA

Direct Indirect

B B3
- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

= 100%

- 100%

= 100%
51% -
= 100%

- 100%

Principal activities

FEEHR

Inactive

RO

Investment holding and
trading of goods
REZRRHEEEm

Trading of goods

HEAm

Trading of goods
HEEm

Trading of goods and
provision of beauty
services

HEERRRUEARE

Trading of goods
HEEm

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

REER

Trading of goods and
provision of marketing

strategy
HE S m Rt 2 R

RIEEREERER LA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEIMTBIRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FFF+—H=+1—HIFE

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 25. RMIBARZIRE (4])

LBRERERMAERAR" The PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Trading of goods and
(Lucky Creation Enterprise (Shanghai) e AR¥50000007C provision of marketing
Limited)* strategy, management of

operation of online shop
on e-commerce platforms

HEEmRRHETES
TaRLEHEHER
LReEER
BEEBRM (L8 ARAR" The PRC RMB1,467,259 - 100%  Provision of marketing
(Jianyi Information H ARHE14672597C strategy, management of
Technology (Shanghai) operation of online shop
Limited)* on e-commerce platforms
R{EFEBTAEL
LEER
Upfront Success Limited BV Uss1 100% - Investment holding
RBRUES ES AW REER
Value Top Group Limited (note (c)) BVI US$50,000 - 51%  Investment holding
Value Top Group Limited (#75E () RERLHE 450,000 7C BEER
World Gold Technology Limited HK HKS1 - 100%  Investment holding
0 BT REER
BR( 8 BERESERRE" The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Trading of goods
(Prospect Delight (Shanghai) Limited) 1 AR 20,000,0007T HEEMm
Prospect Delight (HK) Inc. Limited HK HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding and
#E () BRRF 5 711,000,000 7T trading of goods

REZBRRHEERR

Smartac International Holdings Limited

146

2020 Annual Report



Name of subsidiary

WEAREMR

AABRAE SR 81t

(Japan Nishiki Trading Co,, Ltd.)*

Forever Triumph Holdings Limited

Smartronic Limited (formerly known as

Worth Access Limited)

BRANAERLAR (FIHARBRAR)

A-List Holdings Limited

Eminent Noble Holdings Limited

Denny International Limited

REBRRARAA

Excel Classic Holdings Limited

Smartac Hong Kong Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZT -_FTF _—HA=+—HILFZ

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
FMRIL

R L3t 2
RAQE

Japan

AR

BVI
RERIES

HK
B

BVI

RBELES

HK
BA

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Issued capital/
registered
capital

BRTRE/
HMER

JPY1,000,000
1,000,000 B

US$1
ELTL
HK$100,000

75 #100,000 7T

USS1
ELTL

US$1
EE1T

HK$10,000
7B H#10,000 7T

US$1
ZEI1T

HK$10,000
10,000 7T

25. RBATZRE ()

Percentage of
ownership interest
BRRESZLA

Direct Indirect

B B3
- 100%
100% =
= 51%
100% =
100% =
- 51%
100% =
100% =

Principal activities

FEEHR

Not yet commenced
business

HAREFS

Investment holding

REZMK

Trading of goods

HERm

Not yet commenced
business

HAREEL

Investment holding

REER

Trading of goods
HEER

Not yet commenced
business

HARRFS

Provision of Group's
administrative services

BRSBTS

RIEEREERER LA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMEHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FFF+—H=+1—HIFE

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

25. RBARZIRE (1)

Smartac Secretaries Limited HK HK$10,000
&5 H10,0007T
Treasure Beam Holdings Limited BVI UsS1
REEZHS ESam
Novel Edge Holdings Limited BVI Uss1
RERLHE ESAb
Radiant Wave International Limited BVI US$50,000

WBRELHS %4 500007C

Sky Oasis Holdings Limited BVI US$1
EBREAHS e A
k4 These subsidiaries are foreign investment enterprises established pursuant

to the law of the PRC.

These subsidiaries are registered with limited liability under the law of the
PRC.

d Being English translated names.

Smartac International Holdings Limited

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

- Not yet commenced
business

HARRFS

- Not yet commenced
business

HARREFS

- Inactive

ENER

- Inactive

AR

- Inactive

ROET:

ZEWB R R IRE S BUARK AN
FERERE -

ZEMBRRDREREEREMZE
REMLERF

RXB=ERH -

2020 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

25. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The following table shows information on the subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests material to the Group. The financial information

25. RIBARZIRE ()

Mt -

(@ TREIEAHAEEMNEBEAIE
gz @ AR AR - HIEEMKR

represents amounts before inter-company eliminations.

SERRABREHAZ S -

VCL LCE Group
Date of incorporation 28 August 2013 27 March 2017
Ealijnava=:t] = \HsEINEH =T e Heals faE
Place of incorporation BVI BVI
SR AR LM 2h KBRS KBRS
Principal place of business HK and the PRC The PRC
FTEEEME BEBRFE R
9% of ownership interests/voting rights held by non-controlling interests 44.55% 49%
RS AR LA
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-2H —ZT-hnF —E-EHF —hE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT AR®ET T AR%TT
At 31 December: Ir=ESar=E ¢
Non-current assets EMENEE 64,604 64,381 119 22
Current assets mEEE 11,169 11,278 10,343 20,2725
Current liabilities MEBAE (16,099) (16,981) (11,692) (12,260)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (13,118) (13,099) - -
Net assets/(liabilities) FEE/(AFE) 46,556 45,579 (1,230) 9,292
Accumulated non-controlling REP SRR MR
interests 20,741 20,305 (603) 4,553
Year ended 31 December: #=1+=-H=+—H
WEFE:
Profit/(loss) and total A (E5E) EHam
comprehensive income WS 4a%a 1,063 677 (10,523) (30,339)
Profit/(loss) allocated to DECE IR ERS 2
non-controlling interests SF(EE) 525 337 (5,156) (14,866)
Net cash generated from/ wEEBEE(FER)
(used in) operating activities ZFRE 1,140 - (5,860) (8,365)
Net cash (used in)/generated wEESEA) EE
from investing activities 2FIRE (119) (25) 5 (502)
Net cash used in financing activities gt & & B)FE A 2 FIR & (1,000) (478) = =
Exchange reserves T 5 e 10 (16) (212) 70
Net increase/(decrease) in cash Be kREZEEY
and cash equivalents a0 R ) HEE 31 (519) (6,067) (8,797)

During the year, the Group acquired entire 30% equity interest of Haihai
Limited from the non-controlling interest. Hence, Haihai Limited becomes
the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group thereof.

During the year, the Group disposed of 49% equity interest in a wholly-
owned subsidiary, Value Top Group Limited without loss of control.

b)) FA - AEEREERERKIEEES
FRAB2E30% A% - Eit - PEMEHER
ARREAEBZ 2B B AR

@ FA - RNEETEI R KPEGIE 215
T & &= & W B A Al Value Top Group
Limited 2 49% AR HE o

RIREEERARAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMEHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FFF+—H=+1—HIFE

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 26. IH—MBEATRE
2020
—F-%F
RMB’000
ARE TR
Unlisted investment: JELETHIRE :
Share of net assets BIRFEE 5,024 3934
Goodwill e 7,224 7,224
12,248 §1%58
Less: Accumulated impairment loss o RETREEE (7,224) (7,224)
5,024 3,934
Note: B
(@)  Details of the Group's associate at 31 December 2020 are as follows: @) AEER=-_ZE-TF+-_A=+—A02
B N RIFIBMT

FEREE BRI ERAT The PRC RMB6,060,606 27.4%  Provision of information
(‘Zewei") s AR 6,060,606 7T inquiries and sharing services
R (s BRI REEAEAR
BROA([EE]) AERR
The following table shows information on the associate that is material to TREF —EHAEEN S B E RV
the Group. This associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial BATIER o i AR AR A
statements using the equity method. The summarised financial ANZEIBHRE - 25| B ERE
information presented is based on the associate’s adjusted management ThECPARZH & N AR B R B 75 R 5 22 A
financial statements prepared under IFRS. BB SRS IEHRE -

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

26. H—RIEE

rRE BB R
E_Tr L f=+—HILFE

IAEZIRE (8)

Hiat - (5)

(Continued) (a) (&)
2020 2019
—E-EHF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFIT
At 31 December: R+=A=+—8:
Non-current assets JERBEE 155 310
Current assets mENEE 22,768 16,608
Non-current liabilities FERBBE (206) (206)
Current liabilities MBAE (4,382) (2,356)
Net assets FAE 18,335 14,356
Group's share of net assets AEBEELFEE 5,024 3,934
Goodwill GRS 7,224 7,224
Group's share of carrying amount of interests AEBEELEREEE 12,248 11,158
Year ended 31 December: BE+-A=+—HLEE:
Revenue WA 84,523 32,953
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income 4F A% 7| & 2 o W a5 48 58 3,980 3,879
The recoverable amount of the investment in Zewei in 2019 was (@) = —eE o &ﬁfﬁ%iﬁz—mﬁllﬂﬁgﬁ

determined from the value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations were those regarding the discount rate, growth
rate and budgeted revenue. The Group estimated discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the investment in Zewei. The growth rate
was based on long-term average economic growth rate of the
geographical area in which Zewei operates. Budgeted revenue was based
on expectations on market development of related operations.

The cash flow forecasts of Zewei were derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors covering a five-year period
using a growth rate of 3%. The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast
cash flow was 23.5%. Since the recoverable amount of Zewei was
approximate to its carrying amount, no impairment loss was recognised in
2019.

After consideration of recent financial performance of Zewei these two
years due to the change of Zewei's business strategy, the directors did not
consider any indication of impairment existed in 2020. Hence, no
impairment test was performed in 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances of the Group's
associate in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to RMB17,476,000
(2019: RMB13,234,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and
remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject to the foreign exchange
control regulations imposed by the PRC government.

TR REER HEE o EREER

P e £ ZRER Ty HEBLHR X - ﬁﬁr&
BHEXFEREE - AEEEARRE
A5 2 &SR REEER G RIS 24
ZEE R Z FRTEATE R AEETRAR K -
BRERTNERERSEREIRZ KH
FHREREER - AELXBIENE
L E 2 EBmSER o

B2 B2 RETRATIRE EEATHLE
KA RENAERERFH 2 &0

HE A %LAEEEE%E ABRESREZ
& B BT E R 52350 © FFAEHE 2 AUk
El&EMEEREERAS @ WITERZT

—NEERRERRE -

KEE BIRME ISR FEEBURER
ZMEFE 2T HERRE 2R
AR T _ZFWETABEDR - B
t RS FWEETRER -

R-ZE-ZFF+-A=+—R ' &5H
ZHRBEBERNRUARBHEZERITRE
RetTAARK17476000T (==
—NF : AR®132340007T) ° #FAR
B IR BN [ IE AR B3R SNE B ST A
BB B2 IMNEE HIAE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=F-_FF+ A =+—HIFFE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI

Non-current assets EMBNEE
Unlisted equity securities IE TR ARES

27.

BAREARMMEEE 2 &R
RE

2020 2019
—E-TF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT

The unlisted equity securities represented an investment of 1.81% equity
interest in a private company established in the PRC.

The fair value of this investment at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was
valued on market comparison approach with reference to market
comparable ratio of listed companies engaging in similar business of the
investee. The valuation was performed by Valtech Valuation Advisory
Limited (“Valtech”) in 2020 while valuation was performed by AVISTA
Valuation Advisory Limited (“AVISTA") in 2019. Both Valtech and AVISTA
are independent valuation firms. By taking into account of the valuation
prepared by Valtech, the management considered the fair value of the
financial assets at FVTOCI at 31 December 2020 was still immaterial.
There was no change of valuation methodology for both years.

The above financial assets at FVTOC! are denominated in RMB.

28. INVENTORIES

28.

FLEMEAEFSFER—REFBEKILZ
FAARRIZ 1.81%RHERE -

HEER-_BE-_EFR_T—NF+=
B=Z+—RAZARETATISL AL
SBUEHRLEHSHOEFR 2 ETA
RIZTIGAI L RETHE - T 2FF
ZEER AR EERAR(TARED
HIT M- NAF2FEEHRER
FEBERARAR (X E®R])ET T
BERYZERHEBYEEQR - EEH
BAmEEZHEER ERERAEAR
B AEMEZEREZEMEENR T
—EF+ A=+ BZARENAY
TEKX - RMETFTE BB EHESE
& o

iR AR EFARMEE RS 25
BEMARBE -

=8

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT—-hF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T ARBT T

Finished goods BUIAL oA 32,222 5,991
Less: Allowance o B (9,873) (2,681)
22,349 3310
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FF+ —HA=+—HIFE

28. INVENTORIES (Continued) 28. FH ()
Reconciliation of allowance for inventories: FEREHE
2020
—E-EH
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January i =] 2,681 948
Write-off b6 (1,060) -
Allowance for the year FARE 8,356 1,718
Exchange differences PE R =% (104) 15
At 31 December e = B =— 9,873 2,681
29. TRADE RECEIVABLES 29. FEMMERER
2020
—E-FF
RMB’000
AREBT R
Trade receivables (note) FEMRBR R (H17T) 62,686 6,273
Less: Allowance (note 6(b)) B B (Btatem)) (1,299) 410)
61,387 5,863
Note: et -
The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. The credit terms REBFBHEE B SIEHUEEHIR AT o
generally range from cash on delivery to 180 days. The Group seeks to maintain EEHE BN FEERNHE 180K - REH
strict control over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances are reviewed DRIREB R RS SERS TSRS
regularly by senior management. 18 A B €T B M s EE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEIMTBIRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FFF+—H=+1—HIFE

29. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 29. FEULERRR (48)
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on the BEEZEEH - NEEREWERR (MR
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows: B 2BREE DT ¢
2020
—EB-BF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Up to 3 months 3fEAMA 55,904 5,799
3 to 6 months 3E6fd A 5,369 10
6 months to 1 year 6EAZEVE 31 46
Over 1 year 16 E 83 8
61,387 5,863
The carrying amounts of the Group's net trade receivables are AREBEWRFFEZRABENTNIE
denominated in the following currencies: WE=HE -
2020
—E-EF
RMB’000
AR¥T T
HKS o 45,031 61
RMB AR 6,021 3,585
uss & 8,050 2,217
EUR Lot 2,285 -
61,387 5,863
30. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 30. FA(IRR - e R H thFEYRTR
RECEIVABLES
2020
—g=%F
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Advance payments to suppliers (note (a)) AMEFEEER 2 BRI (Mt @) 10,673 -
Deposits (note (b) and (e)) 2% (Bt m) % @) 6,472 7,578
Prepayments TERF R 3,129 1,789
Other receivables E U
— Settlement obligation receivable (note (c) ~ — BB EERUWI (HE () 857 1,553
— Others (note (b)) — H At (H7F b)) 5,043 1,953
VAT recoverable (note (d)) Al U e ER (B 2T () 1,712 788
27,886 13,661
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RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

30. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

Included in advance payments to suppliers of HK$2,159,000
(equivalent to RMB1,812,000) (2019: Nil) paid to a company
controlled by a non-controlling interest of the Group, representing
50% of the total amount of the accepted purchase order of goods.

Included amounts of RMB4,863,000 represented guarantee
deposits paid to suppliers to ensure the stability of goods supply
in 2019. The amounts of RMB2,806,000 were included in other
receivables upon expiry of supplier contracts in 2020.

The amount as at 31 December 2020 was received after year end
from an e-commerce partner for settlement of the obligations as
disclosed in note 33(a).

Reversal of impairment loss of RMB18,000 (2019: RMB190,000
impairment loss) on VAT recoverable was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2020 due to utilisation of VAT recoverable
during the year.

Included in amount of HK$2,908,000 (equivalent to RMB2,441,000)
deposit for acquisition of 24.81% equity interest in a private
company, such amount carried interest of 5% per annum. The
amount shall be repaid together with the interest accrued to the
Group if no definitive sales and purchase agreement has been
signed on or before 3 March 2021. Subsequently on 12 March
2021, the Group and the vendor of the investee agreed to extend
the repayment date to six months from 1 March 2021 by way of
signing a loan agreement. The amount bears interest of 5% per
annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s deposits and other receivables are

(@)

(d)

30. FA{IRR - EE R EMEKRR (4)

M EREEL 2 2R A RBIEZA T A
EEEERESENZARBE
2,159,000 7T (#HE P A R # 1,812,000 7T)

ZE-NF:E) FEBEXEREE
FIESMEEE 7 50% ©

ARM4863000 2 KIBBERZE
—NFRBERE R EERTE M e
T2 REES - AR 280600072 K
HERZZE-TFHEREGOEMETTA
H b UK ©

MM FEBEMARE  R_F_FF
TZHA=+—HZHRATRERERE
FRBBHABEEFUWE -

A EEERRERERRD AR
18000 (ZE—N&F : BEEBBEAR
190000 ) REE-_ZE_TF+ A
=+—HIEFE®RR  DERFEANEA
AU eI ER o

T AUEE — AL R ] 24.81% BRE 2 1%
& 7 #20080007C( A B M A R ¥
2,441,0007T) * &K IBIR 5% 2 F =Gt
B R =_—F=A=H=Za
EEITENEENE  ZoBEERE
AIME—fHEETASE - HER=Z
——F=A+-0 AEEEREHR
ZEHFREEBREITERBESERB
HpE R =28 = = ae = B EHE TN fE]
B o sRIBIZ 5% 2 FFIRE B -

AEBZRE REMBEGRZ ERENR TIIE

denominated in the following currencies: WA -
2020 2019
—E-%F —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTFT
HKS B 4,430 2,065
RMB AR 7,538 9,019
Uss x& 404 -
12,372 11,084
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RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31. RERRESZEY
2020 2019
—ECEF —Z=—-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREFIT
Bank and cash balances (note (b)) RITRBSET (HEwn) 43,668 85,931
Time deposits mature within three months =& A A2 EERTF K

(note (a)) (Kt3% (a) 16,801 140,443
60,469 226,374

Note: B -

(a) The Group placed time deposits with banks with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies in Hong Kong, with fixed
maturities and fixed interest rate which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk.

The interest rate on short-term bank deposit was 0.01% (2019: ranging
from 2.08% to 2.45% per annum).

The balances were denominated in HKS.
(b) As at 31 December 2020, bank balance of RMB707,000 (2019:

RMB1,636,000) was restricted for the purpose of settlement obligations as
set out in note 33(a).

The carrying amounts of the Group's cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

REEETEPFRIFHRERBREETR
BEFASEEFRZEBRT  BAF
EE I A RIREEN KRGS - €8 %
BAS QA ENERER

EHRITERZFERE001% (ZE—AN
F o FENTF208%E 245%) °

FEFIABEEE -

RZE-_FTF+_HA=+—H ' ARK
707,0007C( ZE—NF : AR¥1,636,000
TO)RITE TRV AENE 336 ATalE
HEE-

AEBERE MRS EFEYZEREENT
SIEHEEHE

2020 2019
—E_ZHF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREBFIT

Us$ E=& 1,964 51
HKS T 43,048 212,664
RMB AR 15,419 13,652
Others Hip 38 7
60,469 226,374

As at 31 December 2020, the Group'’s bank and cash balances held by
the PRC subsidiaries denominated in RMB amounted to RMB18,328,000
(2019: RMB13,367,000). Conversion of RMB out of the PRC are subject to
the foreign exchange control regulations imposed by the PRC
government.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FF+ —HA=+—HIFE

32. TRADE PAYABLES 32. FE(IRRFR
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the date of BIBEWEX=ARSGEE  AEEERN
receipt of goods or service consumed, is as follows: R REAITIAT -
2020
—e-2E
RMB’000
ARET T
Up to 3 months 3EAA 1,768 882
3to 6 months 3&618A 29 =
6 months to 1 year 6EAZ1F - -
Over 1 year 155 E 708 708
2,505 1,590
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are denominated in REBEMNERZREENL TIE®EET
the following currencies: & :
2020
=t t T
RMB’000
ARET T
RMB AR 803 1,350
HKS B 1,684 240
uss e 18 -
2,505 1,590
33. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. B ERAREMEDIR
2020
—E-FF
RMB'000
ARET 5
Other payables HAh B
— Settlement obligation (note (a)) — BEEE(KFE) 1,564 3,190
— Other tax payables — HibE R IE 192 301
— Rental deposits from tenants — BHRPWERZBLES 1,312 1,159
— Others (noted (b)) — Hps (BfaE b)) 2,492 2175
Capital gain tax payable (note () BRI ER SR (HFE ) 6,180 6,602
Loan from non-controlling interest (note (d)) eI S B R (M a2 () 4,897 -
Provision for social security costs HERIREEREE 5,098 4,987
Accrued expenses JEET &R 3,805 2,967

25,540 21,381
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ=F-_FF+ A =+—HIFFE

33. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(@)  The settlement obligations are recognised upon receipt of fund
mainly from the end user customers of WeChat Pay service. The
balance represents the Group’s obligations to remit the same
amount to designated contracted merchants. The settlement is
normally done in the next two business day of the transaction
date.

(b)  Included an amount of RMB355,000 loan from a related party of a
subsidiary, which bearing interest of 10% p.a. and repayable on or
before 30 June 2021.

(©  Asat 31 December 2020, the Group had provision of capital gain
tax of RMB6,180,000 (2019: RMB6,602,000) relating to the
acquisition of LCE Group in 2017.

(d)  The loan from non-controlling interest is unsecured, interest-free
and has no fixed term of repayment.

34. DUETO A DIRECTOR

The amounts due to a director are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed term of repayment.

35. BANKLOANS AND BANKING FACILITIES

The analysis of the Group's bank loans is as follows:

Secured bank loans repayable HAR—FARNEEZ
within one year BHEPRITER

33.

et & B R E (3R (48)

@ BEEEIRERIZREMEX
N ARTS 2 A m B P SIR R RERR © 3%
REERASBELRESEER
EANBPZEE - —RWME A
BN ZEMEMEERARNT
-

by BEXE—EHBARBEIZE
KA REE 355000 7T 1% 10% F F| =
SFENMER-_ZE-_—F,"A=1H
K AIERE -

© MNRZEZZEF+-A=+—H' 'K
SRR T —tFWKBLCE
Grouprt IR B AN EHRBHEARE
6180000 TC(ZFE—NF : AR
6,602,000 7C) ©

(o) FEEBRESERSEER 28R
EEEEZ -

34, E(FTESRIA

35.

ENEEFRAR/EER RS RTEE

IRITERKRIRITRIA
AEBMBRITERIINMT -

2020 2019
—ECEH —T-NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFTT

8,000 9,000

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans are denominated in
RMB.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

35. BANKLOANS AND BANKING FACILITIES (Continued) 35.

The Group's bank loans are arranged at the following interest rates:

Bank loan at fixed rate of RMB8,000,000 REFEMEGT B ZIRITER
(2019: RMB9,000,000) AR ¥ 8,000,000 7T
—NEF
A R # 9,000,000 7T)

RITE A&ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ €))
EE 2 RITERRTHIRRS

2020 2019
—EZH —T-NF

4.55% to £
5.50% 544%

The Group's bank loans are repayable within one year. Bank loan of
RMB8,000,000 (2019: RMB9,000,000) is arranged at fixed interest rate and
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's banking facilities and bank loans
totalling RMB8,000,000 (2019: RMB9,000,000) are secured by:

—  Charge over the Group's building located in the PRC (note 19);
—  Charge over the Group's investment properties (note 20);

—  Charge over the Group's right-of-use assets related to leasehold
lands in the PRC (note 21); and

—  Personal guarantee from a director of the Company’ subsidiaries.

ZK%@Z%E BERAR—FREE- &

E,TM\E%%&OOO,OOOE(_y FLE
/\E?ﬁ%ooooooﬁ)}EIE%IJ$§+E\&$
SEAZ AR BERERER -

F—=—%¢+—ﬂ:+—a KEE
IRITRVE RIRTTE A £ AR S,000,000
ez 71¢ : AR ¥9,0000007T) T3
LA %8 B 5 18

— AEBEMNRFBRZEF(HE19)
— AEEREWE (KizE20) :

— AKBURTEZEE T ERE
BE(FE21) R

— ARANBAR—REFRZEAE
R o
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FFF+—H=+1—HIFE

36. LEASE LIABILITIES 36. IHE&(HE

2020 2020
“EC-EF —E-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TT
Within one year =y 4,013 1,451 3,393 1330
More than one year, but not HiB—F - BTEBARE
exceeding two years 2,971 709 2,765 675
More than two years, but not BBRE - BETBBAT
exceeding five years 248 - 247 -
7,232 2,160 6,405 2,005
Less: Future finance charges o REIT%E R (827) (155)  N/AFRER NATER
Present value of lease obligations A& & EIR{E 6,405 2,005 6,405 2,005

Less: Amount due for settlement & : 12{& A RN E|HApE
within 12 months (shown under N IE (FREIAE

current liabilities) BI7R) (3,393) (1,330)
Amount due for settlement 1218 A& B BB FE S 50R

after 12 months 3,012 675
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease JERREEAEZ INET 5SS EF
liabilities range from 8.43% to 17.06% (2019: from 8.43% to 8.67%). KA F843% = 1706%( = F — JLF :

843% E 8.67%) °

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities are denominated in AEEHSEABEZREAENTIEES
the following currencies: A :
2020
RMB’000
AR®T
RMB ARE 2,589 1,588
HIKS B 3,816 417
6,405 2,005

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

rRE BB R
FoTEL A=+ —HILFE

37. DEFERRED TAX IRIEFRIE
The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group. AEERRBELEHBEAEWT °
Property,
plant and
equipment
and other Investment Customer
assets properties relationship Total
¥ - BE
RBHEUAR
HitEE REW= EFB% e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AR®TT AR®BTT AREBTE
At 1 January 2019 P e Hd (538) (12,183) (8,349) (21,070)
Credited/(charged) to HA(HIB) B
profit or loss (note 12) (KiaE12) 51 (300) 8,349 8,100
At 31 December 2019 and —JNAE
1 January 2020 -f—_)fJ:-f——El&
—ET-FF¥—H—H (487) (12,483) - (12,970)
Credited/(charged) to A (k) B
profit or loss (note 12) (et i2) 51 (200) = (149)
At 31 December 2020 MRZZE_TF
i e e (436) (12,683) - (13,119)
At 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of INE R ea=ae T B = e B 0 Asecfe]

RMB101,587,000 (2019: RMB153,257,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of

the tax losses of RMB101

,587,000 (2019: RMB153,257,000) due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

BERER T IEEE AR 101,587,000

e S

A (P AR K 85 R 28 ) o

s & N JER B 5 057/ 000 )
FR A 4 A 78

R MR - A BT IREBRAR

#101,587,000( = &
153,257,000 7T ) FER;

IR o T
BEEBIREE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEIMTBIRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FFF+—H=+1—HIFE

37. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 37. RIEFRIA (4)
The unused tax losses of RMB80,860,000 (2019: RMB137,868,000) will RE R 2 BB R A R 80,860,0007T(=
expire as follows: T—NF : AR 137,8680007T) B HAEF
AT :
2020
—E-EH
RMB’000
ARET T
Year 2020 = s - 74,500
Year 2021 T 27,174 27,737
Year 2022 e s 22,721 23,104
Year 2023 = 7,862 8,118
Year 2024 = s 4,409 4,409
Year 2025 =T i 18,694 -
80,860 137,868
Apart from the tax losses as disclosed above, the remaining tax losses M i EE 2 BiEERSN - 82 NI
may be carried forward indefinitely. B ER A -

Smartac International Holdings Limited

162

2020 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZT -_FTF _—HA=+—HILFZ

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. Bads
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each FRREEE 005 T2 LBk

At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019,
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020

N e [l (8] «
=23 k= Bl =[5 o

—E2-EF—F—A8K
L= T a e H e

The Company
PIN/NE|

Numberof Nominal value
shares of shares
gk 2 =] R EE
HKS$'000
BETIT
8,000,000,000 400,000

Issued and fully paid: ERITRHBE :
At 1 January 2019, INEE=la=—E—[F ¢
31 December 2019, —TNFE
1 January 2020 and T=E=ET—0FE -
31 December 2020 —Z2-FTF—A—H
E_B_FF
+= He= s

Number of
shares

R BE

5,635,970,924

Nominal value
of shares

R4 EE
HK$'000
BT TT

281,798

Nominal value
of shares

B4 E &
RMB'000

ARBETT

252,439

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, if any, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or
sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies and processes during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2020.

AEEEAEEZENRRTREARE
REZEEN  URERBRREH
B3R & A HE SRR E SRS o

R g

AEERBEERRLBEEERRE

=8y

A
22d

BEREARBY G E (L

B BBRFAFABEARRE  NEEX

SRBEXNTRR 2K

BRE(E) -

7]

ARREEEAR  BTHRD  HHE
BENREKER REE-_FT-LER

—E-F

— = —=

T =Hoe il

BHY - BRI e -

RIEEREERER LA

2020 FEHR

163
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e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 38. Ba7s (48)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share
premium, accumulated losses and other reserves).

AEBERNEFHEHABREAR L RER
B ZLLRAEBHFRHEALHARE
AEE - BHFRNEBRBERRE R
ReFEYstE KHARELAEER
M2 EREAREE D (BN ~ IR (B - R
AtEEREMERE)

2020 2019
—EC-BFE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Debt (a) &% () 42,450 40,821
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BekEeEEYD (60,469) (226,374)
Net debt B %5 N/ATEA N/A 7T 38 A
Equity (b) %5 (b) 178,114 241,589
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FRBEEAEE AR R N/A 3 F N/A 7~ A

(a) Debt is defined as trade payables, accruals and other payables, due to a
director, due to related parties, bank loans and lease liabilities as detailed
in notes 32, 33, 34, 35, 36 and 45(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to the owners of the
Company.

It is the Group's strategy to keep the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as low
as feasible. Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio was not applicable for the
year ended 31 December 2020 because the Group had RMB60,469,000
(2019: RMB226,374,000) bank and cash balances arising from the share
placement held near the year ended 31 December 2018 which can be
sufficient to repay all the debts of the Group.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing the non-public
float through the Stock Exchange's website and it demonstrates
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year. At 31
December 2020, 89.47% (2019: 89.47%) of shares were in public hands.

@ EBEFXRATAEMNER EiE8AKEM
JERTFR - ENESERIE - BB TR
B RTEREMERE  FBAGAE
B 75 3R R MY 5£32 233343536 %
45(@) °

) HRBEARAEEAEERBEERR
R

BARLRBEHEEBEKFE HE2—_2-F
FH-_A=Z+—HILFE BB FEY
EREnEE - \F+-_/A=+—
HEFERBAROGREEEEL ZRITR
We T ARB6046900T(—F—AN
F 0 AR 02263740007C) © B LABEE
EASEMAE -

ME—IMNBERMERNERLEARE R
FEBXP EmmBARED25% 8D
HARKA °

NEBB BB B ERNBRIEAR
BlREzZEERNOER  HETKRASF
E—EEERA W REZHRTE K=
E-F+_A=+—08 8947% (=&
— L 1 8947%) IR AREE -

Smartac International Holdings Limited

164

2020 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE  39. FAFMBEIRARKREEEE)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) ZTAFHBFERAR
At 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2020
—E_ZH
RMB’000
ARET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERIKE 8 3
Investments in subsidiaries RHBATIRE 30,820 30,726
30,828 30,726
Current assets REEE
Prepayment and other receivables TR R EAth FE UK 3,043 1,046
Due from subsidiaries S NGIE 60,407 6,229
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEFEEY 18,747 185,495
82,197 192,770
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERTE R I Bt FE T 3K 8,610 9,446
Due to subsidiaries ANERIENGIE ¢ 1,799 -
Due to a director FERTEERIE = 896
10,409 10,342
Net current assets REBEETFHE 71,788 182,428
NET ASSETS FEE 102,616 213,154
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital A% AR 252,439 252,439
Reserves s (149,823) (39,285)
TOTAL EQUITY wmrER 102,616 213,154

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 May 2021 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Yang Xin Min
BHER
Director

EF

gEepN-_T-—FRHA=+—H
HERBA TIALREERE :

Cheng Faat Ting Gary
BT

Director

EF

RIREEERARAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= —

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

s o TR

39. FAFMBIRARRMEFHEEE (H)

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

(b) FAFHBED

Foreign
Share currency
premium translation Accumulated
account reserve losses Total
R RERR BE 5 e E- st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFIT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
(note 40(b)())  (note 40(b)(iii)
(FitaZ40b))) (HiaE40b)ii)
At 1 January 2019 =eE=f=f8 1,269,192 (98,560) (1,152,799) 17,833
Total comprehensive income AREE 2B S ERE
for the year - 14,857 (71,975) (57,118)
Changes in equity for the year REEERE - 14,857 (71,975) (57,118)
At 31 December 2019 and = PF— s
1 January 2020 TZAE X
s H—H 1,269,192 (83,703)  (1,224,774) (39,285)
Total comprehensive income AEELHWELEEE
for the year - (7,875) (102,663) (110,538)
Changes in equity for the year REEEREH - (7,875) (102,663) (110,538)
At 31 December 2020 RIZBEF
T=F Sl 1,269,192 (91,578)  (1,327,437) (149,823)
40. RESERVES 40. {#fs
(a) The Group (a) Z&EHE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein are REBFESBREZEHNAE
presented in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss BirdiEmililmemiaERiA

and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Smartac International Holdings Limited

KirEEmEEHRED -

(b) (EFEHEEREN

(i)

R 17 518 R

BRI EEZRESRNE
P B 2 B 317 B dn &
EZHEE - RERSESA
A Zli"ﬂﬁﬁfﬁiﬁéfﬁﬁ%z
B2tk TAR
RIEREZZED /TEHQ,%\EI
Hig KRABABENEER
HERABXBBIETRHZ
&5 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

40. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and regulations
in the PRC.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the premium arising from
further acquisition of the equity interest up to 100% in GSTD
and Haihai Limited during the year ended 31 December
2015 and 2020 respectively.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the non-distributable reserves
regarding the disposal of discontinued operations during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve

The financial assets at FVTOCI reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets at
FVTOCI held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy in note 4(m)
to the consolidated financial statements.

40. {ifiE (48)

F-FE A=+ —AULEE

RS MBRRMEE

(b) (HEfEEERERN (R)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

EERE
EERBBERTANIK TR
BEPBEERZERIERAER
SEPENEQRKRREE
7R & 8 o

BE R

EX BB RBRERINER
B B 5 ¥R 2R P EE LE Y PR B S
[EZR - ARAREHES M
5 ¥R & I FE4(d) P 8 & 5T IR
KRR -

BAHE
EAREEBREEE_T—AF
E—ZE -G F=H= 1+
HIEFED R B#E—PUWE
= R hEEE A PR A R 2 100%
MR A 2R (E o

Hpf#E
Hit#EEEZzE _T—1F
ToH= ek R e
EREREXBHEBIATD
R

BERARERAHMEE KRS
ZEREERE

BAREFAHRMEEKR
ZeRMEERBERENRE
HRFBZE AR EFAR
s s eMEEZR
RERFEHFE XRE
7 & B 15 3R R B 5 4(m) P K
SETBRERE -

RIEEREERER LA
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AR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FFF+—H=+1—HIFE

41. NOTETO CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(a)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

41. FRRERME

(a) RREDHEEZARHE

TRETAESEREEHELZA
BEPFE(REREE R FRe®
P MEFDELEZABRRS
MEBERIAREEREHNAE
EFeBHanERANDBRBMERE
BEACZHERECAE -

Gain on
Additions early
1 January of new Cash Interest termination Rent  Exchange 31December
2020 leases flows  expenses  ofalease concession difference 2020
ot St 22
bt 23 RELLH t=A
-A-B FENHE HReRE HMEXM HekE HEER  ENEE =t+-H
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARETR AR%TR AR%Tn ARMTR ARBTR ARET:x
Bank loans (note 35) RITEHR (WiE35) 9,000 - (1,459) 459 - - - 8,000
Lease liabilties (note 36) ~ TREBE (At 36) 2,005 8,231 (3,539) 742 (774) (32) (228) 6,405
Due to related parties/ JEfEE A 3E/
other payables™ AR 700 - (345) - = - - 355
11,705 8,231 (5,343) 1,201 (774) (32) (228) 14,760

Bankloans (note 35) BITER(W#35) 9000 - 9,000 - (478) 478 - 9000
Lease liabilites (note 36) REARBWZ2) - 2235 2235 1,382 (1,742) 19 1 2005
Due to related parties JE AT AR 2R 700 - 700 - - - - 700

9,700 203 11935 1382 (2220 597 1 11705

* The amount was grouped in other payables as the party was not

regarded as senior management personnel by the senior
management of the Company in 2020.

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEEMBIRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E=FE-_FF{-_A=+—HIFE

41. NOTE TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued) 41. MERERME (48)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEZBREFHMEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases comprise REEFABRESRERZSEERE
the following: ARIERE :
2020 2019
—ECERF —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AR¥ETTT
Within operating cash flows FTAKLERSRE 835
Within financing cash flows FFARERSRE 1623
2458
These amounts relate to the following: ZECRHENTIEEAR :
2019
bt et 22 —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTTT
Lease rental paid ENEERS 4,618 2,458
(c) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss of () HE—RMEARZEZMILRY
control NI
During the year, the Group disposed of 49% interests in a wholly FA-AEENLNReaREEZS
owned subsidiary at a cash consideration of US$24,500. The effect 24,500 7T HH & 2 & 1B A 7] 2 49%
of the disposal on the equity attributable to the owners of the Wz o HEFHEARNAHER AR
Company is as follows: EERZEINT
RMB'000
ARBT T
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest disposed & Hi & FEFE R #E 55~ BRI (E (899)
Consideration received from non-controlling interest B 3E1E A& #E2S 2 B IR (E 172
Gain on disposal recognised directly in equity BEERERER O SR (727)

BB RARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

41. NOTE TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

(d) Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary

During the year, the Group acquired the entire 30% equity interest
in Haihai Limited, at a consideration of HK$8,100,000 from its non-
controlling interest. The consideration was divided into two parts:
(i) HKS5,100,000 payable to non-controlling interest; and (ii)
HK$3,000,000 to Haihai Limited for capital contribution
commitment of non-controlling shareholder. The effect of the
acquisition on the equity attributable to the owners of the
Company is as follows:

41.

R RERMEE (R)

d) WEE—RMBARZER
FR - AEE M IEERER IS
AR AR ZIB30%ME - REA
& #81000007C c EEARED BM
&5 : () ES FIEER R 2B
# 5,100,000 7T : K (i) BEIEIERR AR R
AEAEREN T AR AR 2B
53,000,000 7T © Y iE BEIEE A A A
BB ANBEES 2 ZENT

RMB'000

ARETTT

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired = Ut B& JEIERR#E 55 2 BRE(E (743)
Consideration paid to non-controlling interest B IR ER N E (4,676)
Surplus from acquisition recognised directly in equity B EEFARE 25 HER 2 W BE B 64 (5,419)

42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As at 31
December 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed in note 21.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding lease commitments relating to
leasing of office under short-term leases is RMB377,000 (2019:
RMB112,000).

The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to investment properties owned by the Group
with lease terms of one to three years, with an option to renew the lease
after the date at which time all terms are negotiated. All operating lease
contracts contain market review clauses in the vent that the lessee
exercises its options to renew. The lessee does not have an option to
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

The unguaranteed residual values do not represent a significant risk for
the Group, as they relate to property which is located in a location with a
constant increase in value over the least four years. The Group did not
identify any indications that this situation will change.

Smartac International Holdings Limited

42, BEHERH

FEEFRHREA
AEBETERRMAZTTLENEE - 1
—ECTFFA=1T—H EHEE
MemRMENARECERHEEHZ
RHIEEAARE -

NR-ZZ_ZTFE+-_A=+—H B@ESE
HESE N 2MAETHEZ REEHREX
EAEARKE377000(ZZE—LF: A
E#112,0007T) °

FEEFSELHEA
AEEMBEAEREMEAB KL LA
EMHA—ZE=F BAERERENE
EER—GER - MEKERESYD
BB e AR A EBRRBH IS RITET
BHEMGR - BEERE - AEALE
BEYMEAREEE -
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42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ—FE=—FF+ —HA=+—HIFE

42. BEHERH (B
MEZ REBKHENRNOT

2020

—EEF

RMB’000

AR¥T T
Within the first year F—FNR 2,394 2005
In the second year chme i 1,451 1,843
In the third year F=5 663 1225
In the fourth year Epusas - 730
Total 55t 4,508 6573

The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss:

—g-%5F

—

RMB’000
AR®BTT

Lease income on operating leases

REMEZHEKRA

3,011 2978

43. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital commitment contracted for at the end of the reporting period

but not yet incurred are as follows:

43, BAHKIE

RBEHREFTNERREE ZEAA
T

2020
—g-%f

RMB’000
AR®TR

Intangible assets

B EE

1,800 -

REEEERARAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

44. OTHER COMMITMENTS 44, Hfthigiz
At 31 December 2020, the Group had certain commitments in respect of NEE=mEELS H= A H . AEE
the outstanding capital contribution of the following associated BLUA T EE & A | R B A R8I R TR
company and subsidiaries: BoHEAHTHE:
2020 2019
et 52 —ZT-hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Cloutac Networks Limited* BERE AR AT - 439
Shanghai Jianerxiu Network Technology LBEmMBSEGEERAH
Co., Limited 10,000 10,000
Haihai Limited (formerly known as VR AR A Al (RITEPEE IRk e 2
Haihai Travel Cloud Limited) BRAA) 2,854 4,465
Cosmartec Limited RFEEERMERAA 10,911 26,896
Shanghai Shijiexian Network Technology EERARERRRERAH
Co,, Limited 5,000 -
Prospect Delight (Shanghai) Limited BR(E8BEBEESERAR 7,000 -
Japan Nishiki Trading Co,, Ltd. BARBEE SR S 63 -
i The subsidiary was de-registered in 2019. * B A BN T — NLE R -
45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 45. FAMEE3EH
In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed Brir A B AR H M A D WEA RS
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had R REFIN  AEETBREANRE
entered into the following transactions with its related parties during the FARE TR A TR »
year.
(a) Amounts due from/(to) related parties (a) FEUY (FE() ARG B FRIAE
2020 2019
it St 2 T AF
Name of related parties Relationship Terms RMB’000 RMB'000
o)y B e ARBT BN S
Lucky Creation Enterprise Non-controlling interest of the  Unsecured, interest-free and - (5,232)
Limited* Group have no fixed term of
REBEFERER repayment
EBEM - RERTE
[ElE 18 & 5
Singutac Group Holdings Controlled by a senior Unsecured, interest-free and - 77
Limited* management personnel of have no fixed term of
FHBEERBRAR the Group repayment
XAKE—EZak BER - 2EBRIE
EIBABEH B E (B2 5

Smartac International Holdings Limited
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45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

a5, RAMEAE3EH (48)

(a) Amounts due from/(to) related parties (Continued) (a) FEU (FESD) BABE S RRIE (48)
2020 2019
== 8 T F
Name of related parties Relationship Terms RMB’'000 RMB'000
BBEER B TR INL S AR T
Evolve Consulting Limited* ~ Controlled by a senior Unsecured, interest-free and - 1
management personnel of have no fixed term of
the Group repayment
XAKE—Eak BER - 2RRIE
EIRABEH [EE B2 5
Kwan Che Ho, Jacky* A senior management Unsecured, interest-bearing of - (700)
LR’ personnel of the Group 10% per annum and repayable
FEERREREAR on or before 30 June 2021
(2019: repayable on or before
15 June 2020)
EHEA - R10% 2 FHIE
STERERZE=—F
NAZTHYZAIEER
(ZB-h&: &
R-ZZ-ZTFXA+AaR
sk AIESR)
BRM/ N e ABRAE]*  Controlled by a senior Unsecured, interest-free and - 121
management personnel of have no fixed term of
the Group repayment
RAEE—Eak EIEW RS RIUE
RS Bl 18 2 5
Kwan Che Hang, Jason* A senior management Unsecured, interest-free and - 1

N

personnel of the Group

AEERREEAR

have no fixed term of

repayment
EBIEW R RUE
Bl {8 2 2

BB RARAR
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RS MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—ZF_—F

45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Amounts due from/(to) related parties (Continued) (a)

Name of related parties

oLyt

Zhang Fang*
R

Yang Xin Min
BIR

Yang Zhen®
BES

*

#

A

Smartac International Holdings Limited

Relationship
BE

A senior management
personnel of the Group

AEERRERAR

A director of the Company

ARAIER

A former director and son of a
director of the Company

RRAAEER
ARA—BEEZRTF

Included in other receivables as at 31 December 2020.

Included in other payables as at 31 December 2020.

Included in other payables as at 31 December 2019.

S e (T

45. PARAS3ZH (48)

Terms

R

Unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed term of
repayment

BEER 28 RIE
ElEEEH

Unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed term of
repayment

BEMA 28 RIE
Bl EEEH

Unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed term of
repayment

BER - 2ERYE
EEEEH

FEWy, (FES) RABSK 5 7R1E (48)
2020 2019
—_ 7 —= $ :g_jl¢
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT BN Swr
= (17
- (896)
- (896)

R=F=FET=A=f R
AR A AR

Moo Et- A=+ Rt
AEABIEH -
REEAFTZA=F R

ANE A ERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MIERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F _FTF+_A=+—HILFE

45. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 45. RlkE RS (4)

(b) The compensation to the Group's key management personnel, (b) XEBEFTEEEABZHE (B
including amounts paid to the Company's directors and certain of IR TARRBEEZRE T &=
the highest paid employees, is disclosed in note 15 to the BB 2 FIB) Rir & I B m R M et
consolidated financial statements. 15 HEER o
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRESREEEEBHAREZ
management during the year was as follows: oA TS -

2020 2019
—E_%F —FE-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBTFT
Short-term benefits kg BRI Rz 6,411 8,421
46. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 46. [AAM

The Company acquired 51% equity interests in LCE Group from the ARARR_E—tFRES (—HEBE

vendor (a BVI company) in 2017. This transaction is regarded as indirect ZEEE A 7)) U EE LCE Group 2 51% A& #E -

transfer of the PRC subsidiaries of LCE Group by non-tax residents and RERXZERSBIERGERHEZEEZE
fall within the scope as described in the Public Notice [2015] No. 7 LCE Group ZH BB AR - BEBERH

("Public Notice 7") issued by the State Administration of Taxation (the HBRB((BERBEER D BEH2RE

"SAT"). 015175% (73R A% 1) PRt $EIS A -

The capital gain derived from such indirect transfer will be subject to EIT ZEEEEMBE ARG AN

and the withholding agent should withhold the EIT amount for Fris®i » BHMEBABBRIBEERKRLE

settlement with the PRC tax authorities pursuant to the Public Notice BREM 2 AER07B7TRR7EAER

[2017] No. 37 and Public Notice 7 issued by the SAT. The PRC tax FRBRSEERINARBEENER o F

authorities would demand from the withholding agent for the payment B R ISR S RN B IS AR

of EIT and impose penalty of 50% to 3 times of the unpaid EIT. The FTgH - WRIUKHEE R KRB EMEH
penalty may be relieved if the share transfer transaction has been SO%E=B2HNE - WAEBEZM

voluntarily reported to the PRC tax authorities. PR GRE S RZROEER S - A

RS Sk T RRR o

RIREEERARAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—F —FTF+_A=+—HIFFE

46.

47.

48.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

On 28 December 2017, the Group paid RMB58,358,000 (equivalent to
HK$70,000,000) to the vendor. On 25 June 2018, the Company issued
consideration shares of RMB5,414,000 (equivalent to HK$6,541,000) to
the vendor as part of the consideration. Neither the Group nor the
vendor has reported the share transfer transaction or has settled the EIT
to the PRC tax authorities upon consideration being partially settled
according to the Agreement. The directors, after consulting the Group’s
PRC legal counsel, were of opinion that a provision of RMB5,581,000
calculated based on the cash consideration paid to the vendor as of 31
December 2017 and further provision of RMB566,000 regarding the
shares granted during 2018 were sufficiently made. They considered that
the risk of having a penalty imposed by the PRC tax authorities arising
from non-compliance was reasonably low.

Apart from above, the Group has no other material contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2019 and 2020.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 7 May 2021, the Company has withdrawn its request for the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange’s decision to uphold the decision of
the Stock Exchange to suspend trading in the Shares under Rule 6.01(3)
of the Listing Rules for failure to maintain a sufficient level of operations
as required under Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules to warrant the
continued listing of the Shares and to proceed with cancellation of the
listing of the Shares under Rule 6.01A(1) of the Listing Rules if trading
remains suspended for a continuous period of 18 months to be referred
to the Listing Review Committee of the Stock Exchange for review.
Pursuant to Rule 6.0TA of the Listing Rules, the Company shall have a
period of 18 months from 1 April 2021 (being the date from which
trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange has been suspended),
expiring on 30 September 2022 to take appropriate actions to
demonstrate its compliance with Rule 13.24 of the Listing Rules, failing
which the Stock Exchange may cancel the listing of the Shares. Further
announcements will be made by the Company in respect of this matter
as and when appropriate and in accordance with the Listing Rules.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The expenses presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income have been changed from the
classification by nature to classification by function as the directors
consider that the new presentation is more appropriate to the financial
statements following the diversification of the Group's business during
the year.

Smartac International Holdings Limited

47.

48.

jnnﬁ{ﬁ (n-ﬁ)
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ﬁ?‘éﬁ?iﬁ)xﬁﬁ%s%ssoooﬁ(ifﬁ%%
% 70,0000007T) e RZE—NF XA
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EFTEF o EE5F REEZAPEERE
BE% REERBEE-_Z—+tF+=A
=t+—HENEAF 2R SNRETIRER
ARE5581000 MR ZE—N\FRK
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BExoSEH - BERERATARmMEDEH
FREEHBRUCENS 2 BBESERK
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IRBUE D B E AL B9 SR IE - $E'<%J‘§L
MRAE6OIAK  ARFRIAEB_Z =
FMA—B (RO AEEEEE
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(Formerly known as Smartac Group China Holdings Limited)
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Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
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